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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D. C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011

Q|

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-26906

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 22-3388607

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization Identification No.,
210 Sylvan Avenue, Englewoo 07632
Cliffs, NJ (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive offict
Issuer’s telephone number, including area code: (40 567-5648
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) difie Exchange Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Exchange Act:
Common Stock, par value $.01 per share

(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c06#turities Act  Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act  YesO
No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantfi{@yl all reports required to be filed by Sectiohdr 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqrégiod that the registrant was required to filehsteports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Y&& No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsto Rule 405 of Regulation Seuring the preceding 12 months (or for such srgrerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and posh files). YesM No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlerrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ($&t229.405 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, toltest of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitpy®xy or information statements incorporated
by reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or anpendment to this Form 10-K. 4

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlexge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileild Accelerated filer 4 Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a srealteporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsiel company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes [ No M

The aggregate market value of voting and nonvatorgmon equity held by non-affiliates of the registrwas approximately
$92,874,887 as of the last business day of thetragit's most recently completed second fiscal tgnar

As of December 102011, the registrant had 14,639,456 shares of Canftack issued and outstanding.
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Documents incorporated by reference:

Portions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement fer2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorfeatderein by reference in Part Il
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the extemtet herein. Such proxy statement will be filechwite Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days of the registr’s fiscal year ended September 30, 2(
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Caution Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaim@@rd-looking statements within the meaning of Bivate Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than steets of historical facts included or incorporabgdeference in this annual report on Form
10-K, including without limitation, statements rediamg our future financial position, business sggt, budgets, projected revenues, projected
costs and plans and objective of management farduiperations, are forward-looking statementswBod{ooking statements generally car
identified by the use of forward-looking terminojoguch as “may,” “will,” “expects,” “intends,” “plas,” “projects,” “estimates,” “anticipates,”
or “believes” or the negative thereof or any vaoiathere on or similar terminology or expressions.

We have based these forward-looking statementsipnwrent expectations and projections about éuawents. These forward-looking
statements are not guarantees and are subjectwenkaind unknown risks, uncertainties and assumpttout us that may cause our actual
results, levels of activity, performance or achieeats to be materially different from any futureuks, levels of activity, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forn@o#lihg statements. Important factors which couldemally affect our results and our
future performance include, without limitation, @bility to purchase defaulted consumer receivahlegppropriate prices, changes in
government regulations that affect our ability édlect sufficient amounts on our defaulted consureeeivables, our ability to employ and
retain qualified employees, changes in the craditapital markets, changes in interest rates, ibe#ion in economic conditions, negative
press regarding the debt collection industry whiwy have a negative impact on a debtor’s willingrtespay the debt we acquire, and
statements of assumption underlying any of thegioirey, as well as other factors set forth undefitLA. Risk Factors” beginning on page 13
of this report and “ltem 7 — Management’s Discussiand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resolt®peration” below.

All subsequent written and oral forward-lookingtstaents attributable to us, or persons acting erbebalf, are expressly qualified in
their entirety by the foregoing. Except as requivgdaw, we assume no duty to update or revisefamnyard-looking statements.
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Part |

ltem 1. Business
Overview

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly ownggnificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctilead_LC, Palisades Acquisition XV
LLC (“Palisades XVI"), VATIV Recovery Solutions LLC'VATIV") and other subsidiaries, not all whollywmed, and not considered material
(the “Company”), is engaged in the business of pasing, and managing for its own account:

» Primary charge-off receivables consisting of accounts that haenheritter-off by the originators and may have been previo
serviced by collection agencie

» Semi-performing receivables consisting of accowitsre the debtor is currently making partial oegular monthly payments, but the
accounts may have been writ-off by the originators

» Performing receivables consisting of accounts whigeedebtor is making regular monthly payments thay or may not have been
delinquent in the past; al

» Distressed consumer receivables consisting of tpaid debts of individuals to banks, finance conggmand other credit and serv
providers.

A large portion of our distressed consumer recdasbre MasterCar®l , Visa and other credit cardwas which were charged-off by
the issuers or providers for non-payment. We aeghiese and other consumer receivable portfolisslagtantial discounts to their face values.
The discounts are based on the characteristiaseisaccount size, debtor location and age of delit)e underlying accounts of each portfolio.

We operate solely in the United States in one tepte business segment.

Prior to purchasing a portfolio, we perform a giaive and quantitative analysis of the underlyiegeivables and calculate the purchase
price which is intended to offer us an adequatarnedbn our investment after servicing expenseserAftirchasing a portfolio, we actively
monitor performance and review and adjust our ctide and servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors ahérstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémed transactions and auctions in
which sellers of receivables seek bids from sevaiqualified debt purchasers. We fund portfotlo®ugh a combination of internally
generated cash flow and bank debt, if needed.

Our objective is to maximize our return on investtria acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assult, before acquiring a portfolio,
we analyze the portfolio to determine how to beakimize collections in a cost efficient manner aedide whether to use our internal
servicing and collection department, third-partitestiion agencies, attorneys, or a combinationliahaee options.

When we outsource the servicing of receivablesmamagement typically determines the appropriatd-gharty collection agencies and
attorneys based on the type of receivables purdh&sece a group of receivables is sent to thirdypeollection agencies and attorneys, our
management actively monitors and reviews the thady collection agencies’ and attorneys’ perforoean an ongoing basis. Based on
portfolio performance considerations, our manageémiheither (i) move certain receivables from ahéd-party collection agency or attorn
to another or to our internal servicing departmgittanticipates that this will result in an in@®e in collections, or (i) sell portions of the
portfolio accounts. Our internal collection unithieh currently employs approximately 40 collecti@tated staff, including senior managem
assists us in benchmarking our thparty collection agencies and attorneys, and psesvics with greater flexibility for servicing a pentage o
our consumer receivable portfolios in-house.

We are a Delaware corporation whose principal etkezwffices are located at 210 Sylvan Avenue, Englod Cliffs, New Jersey 07632.
We were incorporated in New Jersey on July 7, J&88#fiwere reincorporated in Delaware on Octobed 225, as the result of a merger with a
Delaware corporation. We were formed as an
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affiliate of Asta Group, Incorporated (the “Famiiytity”), an entity owned by Arthur Stern, our Cimaan Emeritus, Gary Stern, our Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, and otheners of the Stern family, to purchase, at a sdistlount to face value, retail installment
sales contracts secured by motor vehicles. We beeapublic company in November 1995. In 1999, wstalized on our management’s more
than 40 years of experience and expertise in aoguind managing consumer receivable portfoliogiferFamily Entity. As a result, we cea
purchasing automobile contracts and, with the tssig and financial support of the Family Entitg @anpartner, purchased our first significant
consumer receivable portfolio. Since then, the BaBtity ceased acquiring consumer receivablefplios and, accordingly, does not comg
with the Company.

Industry Overview

The purchasing, servicing and collection of charg#dsemi-performing and performing consumer reables is an industry that is
driven by:

 increasing levels of consumer de
* increasing defaults of the underlying receivabées]
* increasing utilization of thil-party providers to collect such receivab

Strategy

Although we are in a challenging economic period an enhanced regulatory environment, our primajgative remains to utilize our
management’s experience and expertise by idengfygaaluating, pricing and acquiring consumer neadgle portfolios and maximizing
collections of such receivables in a cost efficimatnner. Our strategies include:

* managing the collection and servicing of our consuraceivable portfolios, including outsourcing ajamity of those activities t
maintain low fixed overheau

 selling accounts on an opportunistic basis, gelyardien our efforts have been exhausted througtitioaal collecting methods, or
when we can capitalize on pricing during times whenfeel the pricing environment is high; ¢

* capitalizing on our strategic relationships to itifgrand acquire consumer receivable portfoliopasing, financing and conditions
permit.

Because our purchases of new portfolios of consuetaivables has been reduced, we expect to seeesgonding reduction in finance
income in future quarters and future years, toetktent we have not replaced our receivables aafjfirdiquidation. Instead, we focused on
reducing our debt and being highly disciplined im portfolio purchases. We continue to review pt#portfolio acquisitions regularly and
will buy at a price that we believe will yield odesired rate of return.

We believe that, given our management’s experianckexpertise, along with the fragmented yet grgwiarket in which we operate, as
we implement this short-term strategy, we will bgosition to again grow our business when econaarglitions stabilize.
Consumer Receivables Business
Receivables Purchase Program

We purchase bulk receivable portfolios that inclaarged-off receivables, semi-performing receigalsind performing receivables.
These receivables consist primarily of MasterCayd{fisa(R) and private label credit card accouatspng other types of receivables.

In the past we have acquired, directly and indiyetiirough the consumer receivable portfolios thatacquire, secured consumer asset
portfolios, consisting primarily of receivables sesd by automobiles.
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We identify potential portfolio acquisitions on angoing basis through:

 our relationships with industry participants, fic#l institutions, collection agencies, investonsl aur financing source
» brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivab&e portfolios; ant

» other sources

Historically, the purchase prices of the consureeeivable portfolios we have acquired have rangem fess than $100,000 to
approximately $15,000,000; however, we acquiredgyoap of portfolios in March 2007 for $300 milligthe “Portfolio Purchase”). As a part
of our strategy to acquire consumer receivablef@laos, we have, from time to time, entered intoglanay continue to enter into, participation
and profit sharing agreements with our sourcesnainicing and our third-party collection agencied attorneys. These arrangements may take
the form of a joint bid with one of our third-partpllection agencies, collection attorneys, orfiiciag sources that assist in the acquisition of a
portfolio. This joint bid provides us with more farable non-recourse financing terms or a discouséedicing commission. Current
participation agreements include an approximate Sh&b6ing arrangement after we have recouped 100¥eafost of the portfolio purchase
plus the cost of funds.

We utilize our relationships with brokers, thirdryacollection agencies and attorneys, and sed&portfolios to locate portfolios for
purchase. Our senior management is responsible for:

» coordinating due diligence, including, in some sasg-site visits to the sell’s office;
« stratifying and analyzing the portfolio charactgcis,

 valuing the portfolio

» preparing bid proposal

* negotiating pricing and term

* negotiating and executing a purchase cont

 closing the purchase; al

» coordinating the receipt of account documentatmrttie acquired portfolio:

The seller or broker typically supplies us witrheit a sample listing or the actual portfolio besiodd, through an electronic form of
media. We analyze each consumer receivable partioldetermine if it meets our purchasing criteviee may then prepare a bid or negotiate a
purchase price. If a purchase is completed, managemonitors the portfolio’s performance and usésinformation in determining future
buying criteria including pricing. An integral part the acquisition process is the oversight bylauestment Committee. This committee,
established in January 2008, must review and appatiinvestments above $1 million in value. Votorgeria are more stringent as the size of
the investment increases. The current memberseafdmmittee are the Chairman Emeritus, the Chiethtive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer, and the Senior Vice President. As the @han Emeritus and Chief Executive Officer are eddamily members, at least one other
officer must approve transactions.

After determining that an investment should yieldaglequate return on our acquisition cost aftasiceg fees, including court costs, we
use a variety of qualitative and quantitative festo calculate the estimated cash flows. The falg variables are analyzed and factored into
our original estimates:

» the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
» the average balance of the receivat
» the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtie more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective)

 past history of performance of similar assets -wagpurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beliee have built significant history
on how these receivables will liquidate and castvf
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* number of months since cha-off;
» payments made since che-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

« the locations of the debtors as there are statishetter regulatory environments, better collectisstories, and that are better suite
attempt to collect in and ultimately we have beptexdictability of the liquidations and the expectash flows all of which factor into
our cash flow analysit

» financial wherewithal of the selle

 jobs or property of the debtors within portfoli— this is of particular importance. Debtors withgoor property are more likely to
repay their obligation and conversely, debtors auithjobs or property are less likely to repay thudiligation; anc

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtiginal issuer

We obtain and utilize, as appropriate, input inglgg but not limited to, monthly collection projémms and liquidation rates from our th
party collection agencies and attorneys, as futhi&entiary matter, to assist us in developindection strategies and in modeling the
expected cash flows for a given portfolio.

Once a receivable portfolio has been identifiedofmiential purchase, we prepare various analysssdban extracting customer level data
from external sources, other than the issuer, &dyaa the potential collectability of the portfalid/e also analyze the portfolio by comparing it
to similar portfolios previously acquired by us.dddition, we perform qualitative analyses of otmatters affecting the value of portfolios,
including a review of the delinquency, charge pfdcement and recovery policies of the originatowall as the collection authority granted
the originator to any third-party collection agexssiand, if possible, by reviewing their recoveffgrés on the particular portfolio. After these
evaluations are completed, members of our senioagement discuss the findings, decide whether teerttee purchase and finalize the price
at which we are willing to purchase the portfolio.

We purchase most of our consumer receivable pa#fdlirectly from originators and other sellersliting, from time to time, our third-
party collection agencies and attorneys, througprivately negotiated direct sales, and (ii) trgbwuction-type sales in which sellers of
receivables seek bids from several pre-qualifidat garchasers. We also, from time to time, uses#rgices of brokers for sourcing consumer
receivable portfolios. We consider a variety otdas in determining whether potential seller mayalsource of receivables, a variety of factors
are considered. Sellers must demonstrate thathves:

» adequate internal controls to detect fre
« the ability to provide po-sale support; an
 the capacity to honor g-back and return warranty reque:

Generally, our portfolio purchase agreements petict we can return certain accounts to the seitbin a specified time period.
However, in some transactions, we may acquire Hgdiorwith few, if any, rights to return accourttsthe seller. After acquiring a portfolio, \
conduct a detailed analysis to determine which @aetin the portfolio should be returned to théeseAlthough the terms of each portfolio
purchase agreement differ, examples of accountsrtag be returned to the seller include:

» debts paid prior to the cutoff da

» debts in which the consumer filed bankruptcy ptithe cutoff date
» debts in which the consumer was deceased priarttifaate; anc
 fraudulent account:

We have determined that all accounts returnedltersdor fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are immate@air purchase agreements generally
do not contain any provision for a limitation orethumber of accounts that we may return to thersell
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We generally use third parties to determine bankanp deceased accounts, allowing us to focusemaurces on portfolio collections.
Under a typical portfolio purchase agreement, giieisrefunds the portion of the purchase pricelattable to the returned accounts or delivers
replacement receivables to us. Occasionally, weagduire a well-seasoned or older portfolio ad@uced price from a seller that is unable to
meet all of our purchasing criteria. When we aagsiuch portfolios, the purchase price is furthecalinted beyond the typical discounts we
receive on the portfolios we purchase.

VATIV, our wholly-owned subsidiary located in Houston, Texas, pravlsenkruptcy account servicing. VATIV provides ugwinterna
experience and proprietary systems in supportrvi@eg our own bankruptcy accounts, while alsmeding us the opportunity to enter new
markets for acquisitions in the bankruptcy accdiahd.

Receivable Servicing

Our objective is to maximize our return on investinen acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assalt, before acquiring a portfol
we analyze the portfolio to determine how to beakimize collections in a cost efficient manner @edide whether to use a third-party
collection agency or an attorney.

Therefore, if we are successful in acquiring thefpbio, we can promptly process the receivabled there purchased and commence the
collection process. Unlike collection agencies tiiptcally have only a specified period of timeréxover a receivable, as the portfolio owner,
we have significantly more flexibility and can dsitah payment programs.

We presently outsource a significant amount ofreaeivable servicing to third-party collection agiess and attorneys. Our senior
management typically determines the appropriate-gbarty collection agency and attorney based ertythe of receivables purchased. Once a
group of receivables is sent to a third-party aiten agency or attorney, our management activelpitors and reviews the third-party
collection agency’s and attorney’s performance morgoing basis. Our management receives detail@igses, including collection activity
and portfolio performance, from our internal seivicdepartments for the purpose of evaluating éiselts of the efforts of the third-party
collection agencies and attorneys. Based on partf@rformance guidelines, our management will siggscertain receivables from one third-
party collection agency or attorney to anotheréflelieve such change will enhance collections.

At September 30, 2011, approximately 29% of outfpbos were serviced by seven collection organaret. We have servicing
agreements in place with these five collection pizigtions as well as all other third-party colleatagencies and attorneys. These servicing
agreements cover standard contingency fees antisgrof the accounts.

Operations
The Operations servicing division consists of tldl€@tion department, Media Department, Disputepddgnent, Correspondence
Department, and Accounting and Finance Department:

Collections Department

The Collection Department is responsible for makingd receiving contact with and from consumergHerpurpose of collecting upon
the accounts contained in our consumer receivgaefolios. Collection efforts are specific to acots that are not yet being serviced by our
network of external agencies and attorneys. Thée€Ctiidn Department uses a friendly, customer serajagproach to collect on receivables and
utilizes collection software, a dialer and telepbegstem to accomplish this goal. Each collectoesponsible for:

* Initiating outbound collection calls and handlimgdming calls from the consumer. If a call is reedifor an account that has alrei
been outsourced to a servicer the collector reffag£orresponding contact information and dirdetésdustomer to call the servicer
directly.

* ldentifying the debt and iterating the benefitpafing the obligatior
8
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» Working with the customer to develop acceptablemaed satisfying the obligation. The Collection Regent (and our third par
network of servicers) has the ability to tailor agment plans that accommodate the situation oblitigor by considering components
including their monthly budgets and employmentustz

» Offering (if necessary and based upon the indiMiditaation) an obligor a discount on the overalligation.

Additionally, the Collection Department utilizesearies of collection letters, late payment remiaderd settlement offers that are sent out
at specific intervals or at the request of a menob¢ine Collection Department.

If the Collection Department cannot contact thet@mer by either telephone or mail, the accounkig-graced through an automated
process to obtain the most recent contact infoongtr the debtor. This process employs usage taf slgpplied by a variety of third party
databases. Once new contact information is obtathedaccount is referred back to the Collectioep@tment and collection activity is once
again initiated.

Other members of the collection department areoresiple for:

» Coordinating customer inquiries and assisting thilection agencies in their processes, if nee

» Handling the repurchase process of ineligible antoteceived from a seller that may be included purchased portfolic
» Working with buyers during the transition periodlgros-sale proces:

» Handling any issues that may arise once a purchased/able portfolio is solc

» Reading incoming correspondence for accounts teatwarrently assigned to the Collection Departmensuring the account
handled properly, taking the initial action reqdind forwarding to a collector and/or managerfdétow up action.

Media Department

The Media Department is responsible for obtaingigring and tracking the requests and subsequeeipteof ‘back-up’ documents
associated with specific accounts. These docunagatasually requested from the seller for the psepaf substantiating the debt if the debt is
disputed by the consumer or is requested by oal lgpartment. The Media Department is also resplentor reconciling and tracking
expenses incurred by the aforementioned documgnests and ensuring invoices are handled timelyaagcerrors are corrected.

Disputes Department

The function of the dispute department is to haadlg dispute received via mail, electronically@ephone. Once a dispute is
communicated, the account is removed from the tredorts or reported as a dispute, investigatedrasolution is obtained.

Correspondence Department

The purpose of the correspondence departmentéview, document and scan into the system anyemritbrrespondence related to our
accounts. The employees are also required to nihEfyDepartment to whom the correspondence isdiegito ensure appropriate action is
initiated.

Accounting and Finance Department

In addition to the customary accounting activitigs® Accounting and Finance Department is respte§il:
» Making daily deposits of debtor paymer

» Posting payments to debt’ accounts
» Providing senior management with daily, weekly amehthly receivable activity and performance repc

9
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Accounting and finance employees assist colleaigpartment employees in handling customer dispetating to payment and balance
information and handling the repurchase requesta frompanies to whom we have sold receivables.

Additionally, the Accounting Department reviews tiesults of the collection of consumer receivaldefplios that are being serviced by
third party collection agencies and attorneys.

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Certain collections represent account sales tor atblet buyers to help maximize revenue and casvsfldVe believe that our business
model of not having a large number of collectomjpled with a legal strategy which is focused darapting to perfect liens and judgments
against obligors, allows us the flexibility to saticounts at prices that are attractive to us, jastias important, sell the less desirable acsunt
within our collection portfolios. There are mangtiars that contribute to the decision as to whateivable to sell and which to service,
including:

» the age of the receivabl
« the status of the receival— whether paying or nc-paying; anc
 the selling price

Net collections represented by account sales fofifical years ended September 30, 2011, 2010@0@I\Rere $0.4 million, $3.5 million
and $8.7 million, respectively. Collections reprase by account sales as a percentage of totalotiohs for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were 0.5%, 34Pb 8%, respectively.

Marketing

We have established relationships with brokers mhoket consumer receivable portfolios from bankerfce companies and other cr
providers. In addition, we subscribe to nationddlmations that list consumer receivable portfoliossale. We also directly contact banks,
finance companies or other credit providers toctadionsumer receivables for sale.

Competition

Our business of purchasing distressed consumeivaddes is highly competitive and fragmented, aredexpect that competition from
new and existing companies will continue. We corapeith:

» other purchasers of consumer receivables, incluttimg-party collection companies; a
« other financial services companies who purchasswoer receivable:

Some of our competitors are larger and more estaddi and may have substantially greater finangia@hnological, personnel and other
resources than we have, including greater accabe taredit and capital markets. We believe thandévidual competitor or group of
competitors has a dominant presence in the market.

We compete in the marketplace for consumer reckavadrtfolios based on many factors, including:
» purchase price

» representations, warranties and indemnities regdg

 timeliness of purchase decisions; ¢

e reputation

Our strategy is designed to capitalize on the ntarkack of a dominant industry player. We beli¢hiat our management’s experience
and expertise in identifying, evaluating, pricingdeacquiring consumer receivable portfolios and ag#mg collections, coupled with our
strategic alliances with third-party collection ages and

10
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attorneys and our sources of financing, give usmapetitive advantage. However, we cannot assutewhavill be able to compete successfi
against current or future competitors or that catitipa will not increase in the future.

Seasonality and Trends

Our management believes that our operations magrte extent, be affected by high delinquency ratelsby lower recoveries on
consumer receivables acquired for liquidation dyion shortly following certain holiday periods atidring the summer months. In addition, on
occasion the market for acquiring distressed red@@&s does become more competitive thereby posdiiviynishing our ability to acquire such
distressed receivables at attractive prices in pectods.

Technology

We believe that a high degree of automation is s&amy to enable us to grow and successfully compigheother finance companies.
Accordingly, we continually look to upgrade ourhlieology systems to support the servicing and regovEeconsumer receivables acquired for
liguidation. Our telecommunications and technoleggtems allow us to quickly and accurately protagge amounts of data necessary to
purchase and service consumer receivable portfdhicaddition, we rely on the information technaofagf our third-party collection agencies
and attorneys and periodically review their systéonsnsure that they can adequately service theucoer receivable portfolios outsourced to
them.

Due to our desire to increase productivity throagtomation, we periodically review our systemsgfossible upgrades and
enhancements.

Government Regulation

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refanmd Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, wasoteg There are significant
corporate governance and executive compensatiateteprovisions in the Dodd-Frank Act that reqtiire SEC to adopt additional rules and
regulations in these areas such as corporate gavegn“say on pay” and proxy access. Our effortotaply with these requirements have
resulted in, and are likely to continue to resatan increase in expenses and a diversion of neamagt’s time from other business activities.
We are subject to changing rules and regulatiorisdgral and state governments as well as the stoakange on which our common stock is
listed. These entities, including the Public CompAncounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”), the SEC ahd NASDAQ Global Market, have
issued a significant number of new and increasieglyplex requirements and regulations over thesmoaf the last several years and continue
to develop additional regulations and requireméntgsponse to laws enacted by Congress.

Our business is subject to extensive federal aate seégulations. The relationship of a consumeraaakditor is extensively regulated by
federal, state and local laws, rules, regulationds@dinances. These laws include, but are notduirtio, the following federal statutes and
regulations: the Federal Truth-In-Lending Act, faér Credit Billing Act, the Equal Credit OpporttyiAct and the Fair Credit Reporting Act,
as well as comparable statutes in states whereio@rs reside and/or where creditors are locatechrignother things, the laws and regulati
applicable to various creditors impose discloserpiirements regarding the advertisement, applicaéistablishment and operation of credit
card accounts or other types of credit programdefa law requires a creditor to disclose to cormsimamong other things, the interest rates,
fees, grace periods and balance calculation methsgtsciated with their accounts. In addition, comsts are entitled to have payments and
credits applied to their accounts promptly, to ree@rescribed notices and to request that bikingrs be resolved promptly. In addition, some
laws prohibit certain discriminatory practices onaection with the extension of credit. Furtheatsiaws may limit the interest rate and the
fees that a creditor may impose on consumers. fiedily the creditors to comply with applicable lavesild create claims and rights of offset by
consumers that would reduce or eliminate theirgaltions, which could have a material adverse etieaur operations. Pursuant to
agreements under which we purchase receivablearevypically indemnified against losses resulfiogn the failure of the creditor to have
complied with applicable laws relating to the reediles prior to our purchase of such receivables.
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Certain laws, including the laws described abovay fimit our ability to collect amounts owing witBspect to the receivables regardless
of any act or omission on our part. For exampleleuthe Federal Fair Credit Billing Act, a credird issuer may be subject to certain claims
and defenses arising out of certain transactiomghich a credit card is used if the consumer hadengagood faith attempt to obtain satisfac
resolution of a problem relative to the transactod, except in cases where there is a specifiadaeship between the person honoring the
card and the credit card issuer, the amount oinitial transaction exceeds $50 and the place wtrerénitial transaction occurred was in the
same state as the consumer’s billing address im0 miles of that address. Accordingly, as ecipaser of defaulted receivables, we may
purchase receivables subject to valid defenselepadrt of the consumer. Other laws provide timatertain instances, consumers cannot be
held liable for, or their liability is limited toSP with respect to, charges to the credit cardictestount that were a result of an unauthorizea
of the credit card account. No assurances canvea gihat certain of the receivables were not eistadll as a result of unauthorized use of a
credit card account, and, accordingly, the amotistioh receivables may not be collectible by us.

Several federal, state and local laws, rules, eguds and ordinances, including, but not limitedthe Federal Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act (“FDCPA”) and the Federal Trade Cossigin Act and comparable state statutes, regubaigucner debt collection activity.
Although, for a variety of reasons, we may not peci#fically subject to the FDCPA or certain statdstes that govern third-party debt
collectors, it is our policy to comply with appligle laws in our collection activities. Additionallgur third-party collection agencies and
attorneys may be subject to these laws. To theneitat some or all of these laws apply to ouremibn activities or our third-party collection
agencies’ and attorneys’ collection activities|uieg to comply with such laws could have a matatlerse effect on us.

In order to comply with the foregoing laws and regjons, we provide a comprehensive developmeitrtitrg program for our new
collection/dispute department representatives angaing training for all collection/dispute depaem associates. All collection and dispute
representatives are tested annually on their krayedef the FDCPA and other applicable laws. Accoaptesentatives not achieving our
minimum standards are required to complete a FD&R#&ew session and are then retested. In addiienyal supplemental instruction in the
FDCPA and collection techniques is provided tooall account representatives.

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Act will sudtjas to substantial additional federal regulatenmg we cannot predict the effect of
such regulation on our business, results of operaticash flows or financial condition.

Additional laws or amendments to existing laws, mayenacted that could impose additional restristion the servicing and collection
of receivables. Such new laws or amendments magraely affect our ability to collect the receivable

We currently hold a number of licenses issued uagelicable consumer credit laws or other licensitagutes or regulations. Certain of
our current licenses, and any licenses that welmagquired to obtain in the future, may be sultjegteriodic renewal provisions and/or other
requirements. Our inability to renew licenses otalke any other required action with respect tddisenses could have a material adverse
effect upon our results of operation and financaldition.

Employees

As of September 30, 2011, we had 87 full-time erygés. We are not a party to any collective barggimigreements.

Our web address is www.astafunding.c@opies of our Form 10-Ks, 10-Qs, 8-Ks, amendmédraeeto, and other SEC reports are
available on our website as soon as reasonablyigabatfter filing electronically with the SEC. Nzart of the Asta Funding, Inc. web site is
incorporated by reference into this report.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Note Regarding Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risk factors beilo evaluating the Company. In addition to thddeing risks, there may also be risks
that we do not yet know of or that we currentiykhare immaterial that may also impair our businepgrations. If any of the following risks
occur, our business, results of operation or finahcondition could be adversely affected, the ingdorice of our common stock could decline
and stockholders might lose all or part of theivéstment. The risk factors presented below areetirdsch we currently consider material.
However, they are not the only risks facing our pany. Additional risks not presently known to usyhich we currently consider immateri
may also adversely affect us. There may be risktsatiparticular investor views differently from @d our analysis might be wrong. If any of
the risks that we face actually occur, our businéssincial condition and operating results coule imaterially adversely affected and could
differ materially from any possible results suggeddby any forward-looking statements that we haaderor might make. In such case, the
trading price of our common stock could declined gou could lose part or all of your investmentc&pt as required by law, we expressly
disclaim any obligation to update or revise anyfard-looking statements.

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refoand Consumer Protection Act will subject us to stdostial additional federal
regulation, and we cannot predict the effect of $uegulation on our business, results of operatigreash flows or financial condition.

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refand Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, wasoteg There are significant
corporate governance and executive compensatiateteprovisions in the Dodd-Frank Act that reqtiire SEC to adopt additional rules and
regulations in these areas such as “say on paypend/ access. Our efforts to comply with theseunements have resulted in, and are likely
to continue to result in, an increase in expenadsaadiversion of management’s time from other hess activities.

Given the uncertainty associated with the mannerhich the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will meplemented by the various
regulatory agencies and through regulations, thextent of the impact such requirements will haweour operations is unclear. The changes
resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act may impact theffiability of business activities, require changesertain business practices, or otherwise
adversely affect our business. In particular, tbieeptial impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our opienag and activities, both currently and
prospectively, include, among others:

 increased cost of operations due to greater regylatersight, supervision and compliance with eoner debt issuance and collect
practices; ani

 the limitation on the ability to expand consumesdarct and service offerings due to anticipateadtgriconsumer protection laws a
regulations

The Act establishes a Bureau of Consumer FinaReiztection (the “Bureau”) that will assume broagulatory powers over debt
collectors and virtually all other “covered persowho have any connection to consumer financiatpats or services. The Bureau will have
exclusive rule-making authority with respect tosignificant federal statutes that impact the atiten industry, including the FDCPA, the Fair
Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA"), and others. This meafor example, that the Bureau will have theighib pass rules and regulations that
interpret any of the provisions of the FDCPA, paialy impacting all facets of the collection cha@hnFederal agencies, including the Bureau,
will have been given significant discretion in diiad the rules and regulations that will implem#ére Dodd-Frank Act. Consequently, many of
the details and much of the impact of the Dodd-kract may not be known for some time. In additithis legislation mandated multiple
studies and reports for Congress, which could té@sw@dditional legislative or regulatory action.

At this time, it is not possible or practical taeghpt to provide a comprehensive analysis of hage¢mew laws and regulations will
impact debt collectors. The full extent of that expprobably will not be known for a year or momien the Bureau begins to implement
regulations.
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We expect that we will be required to invest sig@iit management attention and resources to eeadunat make any changes to our
policies and procedures necessary to comply with statutory and regulatory requirements under thdddFrank Act, which may negatively
impact results of operations and financial conditid/e cannot predict the requirements of the regula ultimately adopted under the Dodd-
Frank Act, the affect such regulations will havefimancial markets generally, or on our businesgeifically, the additional costs associated
with compliance with such regulations, or any chestp our operations that may be necessary to gowifil the Dodd-Frank Act, any of
which could have a material adverse affect on asirtess, results of operations, cash flows or firdondition.

Government regulations may limit our ability to reger and enforce the collection of our receivables.

Federal, state and local laws, rules, regulationsadinances may limit our ability to recover ardorce our rights with respect to the
receivables acquired by us. These laws includeateunhot limited to, the following federal statusesd regulations promulgated thereunder and
comparable statutes in states where consumer®rasdior where creditors are located:

» The Fair Debt Collection Practices A
* The Federal Trade Commission A

e The Trutt-In-Lending Act;

» The Fair Credit Billing Act

» The Equal Credit Opportunity Ac

» The Fair Credit Reporting Ac

» The Financial Privacy Rul

» The Safeguards Rul

» Telephone Consumer Protection A

» Health Insurance Portability and Accountability At8HIPAA”)/Health Information Technology for Econdoal and Clinical Health
Act (“HITECH");

» U.S. Bankruptcy Code; ar
» Credit Card Accountability Responsibility and Disslire Act of 200¢

We may be precluded from collecting receivablepweehase where the creditor or other previous ownérnird-party collection agency
or attorney failed to comply with applicable lawdriginating or servicing such acquired receivablesvs relating to the collection of
consumer debt also directly apply to our busin@ss.failure to comply with any laws applicable t including state licensing laws, could
limit our ability to recover on receivables and ltbsubject us to fines and penalties, which coaltlice our earnings and result in a default
under our loan arrangements. In addition, our thadty collection agencies and attorneys may bgstito these and other laws and their
failure to comply with such laws could also matkyiadversely affect our finance income and earsing

Additional laws or amendments to existing laws rhayenacted that could impose additional restristimmthe servicing and collection
receivables. Such new laws or amendments may adyexect the ability to collect on our receivadlevhich could also adversely affect our
finance income and earnings.

Because our receivables are generally originatddsarviced pursuant to a variety of federal, dtates and/or local laws by a variety of
entities and may involve consumers in all 50 statesDistrict of Columbia, Puerto Rico and Southékica, there can be no assurance that all
originating and servicing entities have, at allésnbeen in substantial compliance with applicie Additionally, there can be no assurance
that we or our thirgparty collection agencies and attorneys have beevillccontinue to be at all times in substantiahwpliance with applicab
law. Failure to comply with applicable law could texdally adversely affect our ability to collectroeceivables and could subject us to
increased costs, fines and penalties.
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We are subject to changing rules and regulatiorisdgral and state government as well as the stechange on which our common
stock is listed. These entities, including the RuBlompany Accounting Oversight Board, the SEC thedNASDAQ Global Market, have
issued a significant number of new and increasioglyplex requirements and regulations over thesmoaf the last several years and continue
to develop additional regulations and requireméntgsponse to laws enacted by Congress.

The current economic environment has slowed ourldpito collect from our debtors.

The recent worldwide financial turmoil has adveysafected all businesses, including our own. Theent collection environment is
particularly challenging as a result of factorghie economy over which we have no control. Thestfa include:

» a slowdown in the econom

» severe problems in the credit and housing mar

* higher unemploymen

* reductions in consumer spendit

» changes in the underwriting criteria by originat@sd

» changes in laws and regulations governing consigneing and the related collectiol

Our litigation strategy is highly dependent on ability to locate debtors with jobs and/or homes Wélieve that our debtors are strair
to pay their obligations owed to us. Higher unemgpient rates particularly impact our debtors’ apitit pay obligations and our ability to get
wage executions as a source of payment. Problethe icredit markets and lower home values havecesttithe ability of our debtors to secure
financing through second mortgages and home etjnég to pay obligations owed to us. A continuatidithe current problems in the credit
and housing markets and general slowdown in thagg will continue to adversely affect the effeetiess of our litigation strategy, and the
value of our portfolios and our financial perfornzan

We may not be able to purchase consumer receivablefolios at favorable prices or on sufficienthaforable terms or at all.

Our success depends upon the continued availabflitpnsumer receivable portfolios that meet ouchasing criteria and our ability to
identify and finance the purchases of such pod#lirhe availability of consumer receivable portfelat favorable prices and on terms
acceptable to us depends on a number of factosgdeudf our control, including:

» the growth in consumer del

 the volume of consumer receivable portfolios avdddor sale

« availability of financing to fund purchase

» Competitive factors affecting potential purchaserd sellers of consumer receivable portfolios;

» possible future changes in the bankruptcy lawse $tavs and homestead acts which could make it whiffieult for us to collect

Our future operating results will be negatively impted as we have not replaced our defaulted consureeeivables at historic levels.

To operate profitably, we must continually acquoejnvest in a sufficient level of various typeseceivables to generate continued
revenue. Our investing activities during fiscal y2@11, 2010, 2009 and the last three quarterscdlfyear 2008 slowed dramatically. As the
economic environment deteriorated, we felt thatipg of portfolios had not fallen enough to offgle decline in ultimate collections.
Accordingly, our investment in portfolios was $1alion in 2011, and $8.0 million in 2010 comparted$19.6 million in 2009 and
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$49.9 million in 2008. In part, this led to our reish collections in fiscal 2011 decreasing $2Glifom, or 20.3% from $101.9 million in fiscal
year 2010 to $81.2 million in fiscal year 2010. ther, of those collections, $34.3 million for fisg@ars 2011 and 2010 came from zero b
portfolios (whose carrying value has been reduoetkto). Our decreased level of buying new podfotiuring 2011, 2010, and 2009 will
likely result in future reduced net cash collectiam 2012 and slow the growth of our future revenaled operating results. Furthermore, we
cannot predict how our ability to identify and istén receivables, and evaluate the quality ofeéhreseivables, would be affected if there is a
shift in consumer lending practices whether catlmechanges in regulations or by a sustained ecandownturn.

Our inability to invest in sufficient quantities ofeceivables portfolios may necessitate workforeductions, which may harm our
business.

Because fixed costs, such as personnel costs,todast significant portion of our overhead, we nb@yrequired to reduce the number of
employees if we do not continually invest in reedtiles. Reducing the number of employees can adyeffect our business and lead to:

» lower employee morale, higher employee attritidesaand fewer experienced employt¢
« disruptions in our operations and loss of efficiemccollection functions

» EXxcess costs associated with unused space in thotidacilities; anc

» Further reliance on our third party collection agjes and attorney

The market for acquiring consumer receivable pottifis has become more competitive, thereby diminighour ability to invest in such
receivables at prices we are willing to pay.

The receivables management industry is highly fraigped and competitive, consisting of thousandoofamer and commercial
agencies. We face bidding competition in our adtjoisof defaulted consumer receivables and we edsopete on the basis of our reputation,
industry experience and performance. Some of owenticompetitors may have more resources thamdisrey be willing to purchase
consumer receivable portfolios at higher pricessttiriving up the price of portfolios and potenyiakducing the profit generated from any
such portfolios that we purchase.

We have risks associated with our purchase of $ilBon in face value of receivables purchased $800 million in March 2007 (the
“Portfolio Purchase”) which has not met our expedians and has and may continue to adversely impaat financial position and
results of operations.

Since the inception of the Portfolio Purchase fowahby the Receivables Financing Agreement, theiRables Financing Agreement t
been modified five times due to collections not timeeour expectations. The shortfall has been exated by the general economic downturn.
We have recorded impairments on the Portfolio Pasehotaling $97.2 million ($30.3 million in fiscgtar 2008, $53.9 million in fiscal year
2009, and $13.0 million in fiscal year 2010). ThetR®lio Purchase was transferred to the cost regomethod effective with the third quarter
of fiscal year 2008, as collections became increggimore difficult to predict. Accordingly, we Wilecognize finance income only after we
recover the carrying value of the asset. As a tefnance income since April 1, 2008 has beenwaiccontinue to be negatively impacted.
There can be no assurance as to when or if therdurarrying value will be recovered. Further cakh collections from the Portfolio Purchase
are used to repay our loan under the ReceivabknEing Agreement.

There is no assurance that we will realize the fulllue of the deferred tax asset.

Although the carry forward period for income taiesip to twenty years, such allowance period isideta reasonable period to forecast
full realization of the deferred tax asset. We gurdlly monitor forecast information to ensure tluation allowance is appropriate.
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With portfolios classified under the interest metthoour projections of future cash flows from our pifolio purchases may prove to be
inaccurate, which could result in reduced revenuesthe recording of impairment charges if we do nathieve the collections forecasted
by our model.

We use qualitative and quantitative analyses tgeptduture cash flows from our portfolio purchasélsere can be no assurance,
however, that we will be able to achieve the coters forecasted by our analysis. If we are no¢ ablachieve these levels of forecasted
collections, our revenues will be reduced and wg bearequired to record additional impairment cleargvhich would result in a reduction of
our earnings. We recorded impairment charges af $lllion, $13.0 million, and $183.5 million, fon¢ years ended September 30, 2011, 201C
and 2009, respectively.

As the mix of our portfolios has shifted to the ¢agcovery method, there is a negative impact arafice income as no finance income is
recognized on the cost recovery portfolios untietbarrying value has been recovered.

Historically, we have utilized the interest methodecognize finance income on most consumer rab&wportfolios purchased. As the
economy has impacted our business, making collestioore unpredictable, we have transferred poogdliom the interest method to the cost
recovery method, which delays the recognition wéfice income until the carrying value has beery faléovered.

We use estimates for recognizing finance incomeaoportion of our consumer receivables acquired fajuidation and our earnings
would be reduced if actual results are less thatirested.

We utilize the interest method of revenue recognifor determining a portion of our finance incoreeognized, which is based on
projected cash flows that may prove to be less #micipated and could lead to reductions in reeepruadditional impairment charges under
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acoting Standard Codification (“ASC”) 310, Receivable- Loans and Debt Securities
Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality (“ASC 3} .0Static pools of accounts are established. Tipesds are aggregated based on certain
common risk criteria. Each static pool is recordedost and is accounted for as a single unitiferécognition of income, principal payments
and loss provision. Once a static pool is estabtidior a quarter, individual receivable accounésraot added to the pool (unless replaced b
seller) or removed from the pool (unless sold tureed to the seller). ASC 310 requires that theesg of the contractual cash flows over
expected cash flows not be recognized as an adnstof revenue or expense or on the balance sh8€&t.310 initially freezes the internal r
of return (“IRR”), estimated when the accounts reglele are purchased, as the basis for subsequeairment testing. Significant increases in
actual, or expected future cash flows may be reicegmrospectively through an upward adjustmenbefiRR over a portfolio’s remaining
life. Any increase to the IRR then becomes the hemchmark for impairment testing. Rather than ldmgethe estimated IRR, if the collection
estimates are not received or projected to bevedethe carrying value of a pool would be writtlswn to maintain the then current IRR. Any
reduction in our earnings resulting from such aevdiown could materially adversely affect our stpdke.

We may not be able to collect sufficient amounts@umr consumer receivable portfolios to recover thests associated with the purchase
of those portfolios and to fund our operations.

We acquire and collect on consumer receivable glard that contain charged-off, semi-performingd aerforming receivables. In order
to operate profitably over the long term, we musitmually purchase and collect on a sufficientiwoé of receivables to generate revenue that
exceeds our purchase costs. For accounts thaharged-off or semi-performing, the originatorsmterim owners of the receivables generally
have:

* made numerous attempts to collect on these oldigsitioften using both their-house collection staff and th-party collectior
agencies; an

» subsequently deemed these obligations as uncolie

These receivable portfolios are purchased at sogmif discounts to the amount the consumers owesd receivables are difficult to
collect and actual recoveries may vary and bethess the amount expected. In addition, our colkextimay worsen in a weak economic cycle.
We may not recover amounts in excess of our adgprisand servicing costs.
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Our ability to recover the purchase costs on outfgleos and produce sufficient returns can be tiegly impacted by the quality of the
purchased receivables. In the normal course opottfolio acquisitions, some receivables may béuithed in the portfolios that fail to conform
to certain terms of the purchase agreements andayeseek to return these receivables to the deligrayment or replacement receivables.
However, we cannot guarantee that any of suchrselldl be able to meet their payment obligatiomsis. Accounts that we are unable to re
to sellers may yield no return. If cash flows fromerations are less than anticipated as a resalirahability to collect sufficient amounts on
our receivables, our ability to satisfy our debligdtions, purchase new portfolios, and achievarigrowth and profitability may be materie
adversely affected.

We are subject to competition for the purchase ofisumer receivable portfolios which could result @am increase in prices of such
portfolios.

We compete with other purchasers of consumer rabkvportfolios, with third-party collection ageesiand with financial services
companies that manage their own consumer receiyaitéolios. We compete on the basis of price, tation, industry experience and
performance. Some of our competitors have greafgital, personnel and other resources than we Adepossible entry of new competitors,
including competitors that historically have focds® the acquisition of different asset types, tiedexpected increase in competition from
current market participants may reduce our acaessrisumer receivable portfolios. Aggressive pgdiy our competitors has raised the price
of consumer receivable portfolios above levels thatare willing to pay, which could reduce the nembf consumer receivable portfolios
suitable for us to purchase or if purchased byadyce the profits, if any, generated by such pboi. If we are unable to purchase receivable
portfolios at favorable prices or at all, our ficarincome and earnings could be materially reduced.

We are dependent upon third parties who we do nmtteol to service a significant portion of our consner receivable portfolios. The loss
of certain servicers could have a material adveestect on our financial position and results of opation.

Although we utilize our in-house collection stadfinitiate the collection process to collect sorheur receivables, we outsource a
majority of our receivable servicing. As a resulg are dependent upon the efforts of our tipiagty collection agencies and attorneys to sel
and collect our consumer receivables. Any failyrebr third-party collection agencies and attorneyadequately perform collection services
for us or remit such collections to us could matgrireduce our finance income and our profitapillh addition, our finance income and
profitability could be materially adversely affedté we are not able to secure replacement thirtygallection agencies and attorneys and
redirect payments from the debtors to our new thady collection agencies and attorneys promptlghe event our agreements with our third-
party collection agencies and attorneys are teri@ihaur third-party collection agencies and aggmfail to adequately perform their
obligations or if our relationships with such thipdrty collection agencies and attorneys adverdeiynge. As 29% of our portfolios are servi
by seven organizations, we are dependent on tfieiteto maximize collections.

The current economic environment has had adversieets on others in this industry; certain third pties providing services to us have
filed for bankruptcy protection which has delayedltections.

The current economic environment has had an adeéiset on others in our industry. One of our fiwest significant third party
servicers filed a bankruptcy proceeding and has bgeidated. We took decisive steps in that sew&bankruptcy proceeding and with
permission of the bankruptcy courts, moved all debtcounts to other third party collection uniigtwwhom we have experience . In addition,
a law firm used by the bankrupt servicer also fii@dbankruptcy and has closed. All accounts sexigy this law firm have also been
transferred to similar third party collection unit$e replacement servicer will be taking stepartange for the substitution of counsel.
Notwithstanding the efforts of various parties toyide for a conversion of the accounts to the sewicer, these occurrences could inter
with the collection of certain of our portfolioscinding the ability of judgment debtors to identihe Company, the new servicer or new
counsel as the parties to whom they should diragiqents. In addition, representatives of creditdrthe insolvent servicer and troubled law
firm may endeavor to assert claims with respegtatdfolios that those companies relinquish inclgdaur accounts.
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We rely on our third party collectors to comply Wwigll rules and regulations and maintain proper ietnal controls over their accounting
and operations.

Because the receivables were originated and serpigesuant to a variety of federal and/or stateslawa variety of entities and involved
consumers in all 50 states, the District of Columkind Puerto Rico., there can be no assurancaltiwiginal servicing entities have, at all
times, been in substantial compliance with appliegdy. Additionally, there can be no assurancéweaor our third-party collection agencies
and attorneys have been or will continue to bdl dinaes in substantial compliance with applicalae. The failure to comply with applicable
law and not maintain proper controls in their agtog and operations could materially adverselgetfbur ability to collect our receivables
and could subject us to increased costs, finepandlties.

We may rely on third parties to locate, identify duevaluate consumer receivable portfolios availafide purchase.

We may rely on third parties, including brokers @nidd-party collection agencies and attorneysdemtify consumer receivable
portfolios and, in some instances, to assist wirevaluation and purchase of these portfoliosa Assult, if such third parties fail to identify
receivable portfolios or if our relationships wahch third parties are not maintained, our abittydentify and purchase additional receivable
portfolios could be materially adversely affectedaddition, if we, or such parties, fail to cortlgar adequately evaluate the value or
collectability of these consumer receivable poitil we may pay too much for such portfolios anffiesuan impairment, which would
negatively impact our earnings.

Our collections may decrease if bankruptcy filingsrease.

During times of economic recession, the amountedddted consumer receivables generally increaggish contributes to an increase
the amount of personal bankruptcy filings. Undetaia bankruptcy filings, a debtor’s assets aré $olrepay credit originators, but since the
defaulted consumer receivables we purchase arealgnensecured, we may not be able to collecthmse receivables. We cannot assure you
that our collection experience would not declinghwvén increase in bankruptcy filings. If our actoallection experience with respect to a
defaulted consumer receivable portfolio is sigwifidy lower than we projected when we purchasegtrtolio, our earnings could be
negatively affected.

The loss of any of our executive officers may adsely affect our operations and our ability to suasfully acquire receivable portfolios.

Gary Stern, our Chairman, President and Chief BiezOfficer, Robert J. Michel, our Chief Financ@fficer, and Mary Curtin, our
Senior Vice President, are responsible for makidgstgantially all management decisions, includinggdrining which portfolios to purchase,
the purchase price and other material terms of poctfolio acquisitions. These decisions are inmsgatal to the success of our business. As of
January 2009, Arthur Stern, former Chairman ofttbard of directors, now Chairman Emeritus, stepimen as an employee of the Company.
Mr. Stern continues to serve on the board of dimscand consults with our executives. Significasskes of the services of our executive
officers or the inability to replace our officerstivindividuals who have experience in the industryith the Company could disrupt our
operations and adversely affect our ability to esséully acquire receivable portfolios.

The Stern family effectively controls the Comparsgbstantially reducing the influence of our othetackholders.

Members of the Stern family including Arthur Ste@ary Stern and Barbara Marburger, daughter ofkr8tern and sister of Gary Ste
trusts or custodial accounts for the benefit ofiaanchild of Gary Stern, Asta Group, Incorporatedd limited liability companies controlled
by Judith R. Feder, niece of Arthur Stern and aoo$iGary Stern, in which Arthur Stern, Alice Stéwife of Arthur Stern and mother of Gary
Stern and Barbara Marburger), Gary Stern and tfasthie benefit of the issue of Arthur Stern ahe issue of Gary Stern
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hold all economic interests, own, in the aggregap@roximately 25.7% of our outstanding sharesoofirmon stock. As a result, the Stern
family is able to influence significantly the act®that require stockholder approval, including:

 the election of a majority of our directors; ¢
» the approval of mergers, sales of assets or otirpprate transactions or matters submitted forkétolder approval

As a result, our other stockholders may have redliduence over matters submitted for stockhokggproval. In addition, the Stern
family’s influence could preclude any unsoliciteztjaisition of us and consequently materially adelgraffect the price of our common stock.

Current economic conditions have had a significantpact on our ability to sell accounts.

As part of our historic business model, we have sgtounts on an opportunistic basis. Our abititgell accounts has been limited in
2011 and 2010 and may be limited in the future.dddections represented by account sales for 20ré only $0.4 million, compared to
$3.5 million and $8.7 million in 2010 and 2009, pestively. Collections represented by account sades percentage of total collections were
0.5% in 2011, compared to 3.4% and 5.9% in 20102889, respectively. We had launched a sales eaff@hhance cash flow and pay debt,
particularly from the Portfolio Purchase, but sdlase been slower than expected due to a varigyctdrs, including a slow resale market,
similar to the decrease in pricing we are seeinggimeral, as well as lack of supporting documemagnedia) and validation of the Portfolio
Purchase accounts.

An unfavorable government review of our tax returesuld adversely affect our operating results.

Our tax filings are subject to review or audit bg iRS and state and local taxing authorities. pnil2010, we received notification from
the IRS that our 2008 and 2009 federal incomeetxrms would be audited. This audit is currentlpiagress. The IRS examinations of our
federal tax returns could result in significantpoeed adjustments. Although we believe our taxmedtis are reasonable, we can provide no
assurance that any final determination in an awiflinot be materially different than the treatmeetlected in our historical income tax
provisions and accruals. An assessment of addittaras as a result of an audit could adverselcaibur income tax provision and net income
in the period or periods for which that determioatis made. In addition, the Company recently gigrensent to extend the IRS review period
through 2010.

Negative press regarding the debt collection indyghay have a negative impact on a debtor’s willivegs to pay the debt we acquire.

Consumers are exposed to information from a nurabsources that may cause them to be more relutigzty their debts or to pursue
legal actions against us. On-line, print and othedia publish stories about the debt collectiomugti which cite specific examples of abusive
collection practices. These stories can lead taapel dissemination of the story, adding to theelef exposure to negative publicity about our
industry. Various Internet sites are maintained mwto®nsumers can list their concerns about theiies of debt collectors and seek guidance
from other website posters on how to handle theagdn. Advertisements by debt relief attorneys ardlit counseling centers are becoming
more common, adding to the negative attention gigesur industry. As a result of this negative peibt, debtors may be more reluctant to pay
their debts or could pursue legal action againsegardless of whether those actions are warraifitegse actions could impact our ability to
collect on the receivables we acquire and affectrewenues and profitability.

Class action suits and other litigation could divesur management’s attention from operating our duess and increase our expenses.

Originators, debt purchasers and third-party ctibecagencies and attorneys in the consumer cirgdlisstry are frequently subject to
putative class action lawsuits and other litigatiBfaims include failure to comply with applicaliéevs and regulations and improper or
deceptive origination and servicing practices. Beirdefendant in such class action lawsuits orrditigation could materially adversely affect
our results of operations and financial condition.
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We may seek to make acquisitions that prove unsasfid or strain or divert our resources.

We may seek to grow through acquisitions of reldtesinesses in the financial services sector. &aghisitions present risks that could
materially adversely affect our business and fifrmmerformance, including:

« the diversion of our managem'’s attention from our everyday business activit
» the assimilation of the operations and personnéi@ficquired busines

 the contingent and latent risks associated witlptst operations of, and other unanticipated problarising in, the acquired
business; an

» the need to expand management, administration p@ctonal system:

If we make such acquisitions we cannot predict tvbiet

» we will be able to successfully integrate the opers of any new businesses into our busin

» we will realize any anticipated benefits of compteaicquisitions; ¢

 there will be substantial unanticipated costs d@aset with acquisitions

In addition, future acquisitions by us may resnit i

» potentially dilutive issuances of our equity setiasi,

 the incurrence of additional debt; a

 the recognition of significant charges for depréoimand impairment charges related to goodwill atiter intangible asset

Our investments in other businesses and entry inew business ventures may adversely affect our apens.

We have and may continue to make investments impaaies or commence operations in businesses auostiies that are not identical
those with which we have historically been sucads#fthese investments or arrangements are ratessful, our earnings could be materially
adversely affected by increased expenses and decréiaance income.

If our technology and phone systems are not opesatl, our operations could be disrupted and our Eiyito successfully acquire
receivable portfolios and receive collections fratabtors could be adversely affected.

Our success depends, in part, on sophisticatecbr@i@unications and computer systems. The temptasyof our computer or
telecommunications systems, through casualty, ¢tipgrenalfunction or service provider failure, coulidrupt our operations. In addition, we
must record and process significant amounts of glaitzkly and accurately to properly bid on prospecacquisitions of receivable portfolios
and to access, maintain and expand the databasesevfer our collection and monitoring activitidsy failure of our information systems and
their backup systems would interrupt our operatidvie may not have adequate backup arrangemenradl fufrour operations and we may in
significant losses if an outage occurs. In addjtive rely on third-party collection agencies arntdraeys who also may be adversely affected in
the event of an outage in which the third-partyemiion agencies and attorneys do not have adeaateip arrangements. Any interruption in
our operations or our third-party collection agestiand attorneys’ operations could have an adwedffeet on our results of operations and
financial condition. However, we are in the processnplementing a disaster recovery program whichuld mitigate this risk.

Security breaches and other disruptions could commise our information and expose us to liabilityhieh would cause our business
and reputation to suffer.

In the ordinary course of our business, we collext store on our networks sensitive data, includingproprietary business information
and personally identifiable information of indivi@luwdebtors from which we are
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trying to collect. The secure processing, mainteeaand transmission of this information is crititmbur operations and business strategy.
Despite our security measures, our informationnetdgy and infrastructure may be vulnerable tockkaby hackers or breached due to
employee error, malfeasance or other disruptiony. f\ich breach could compromise our networks amdnlormation stored there could be
accessed, publicly disclosed, lost or stolen. Aughsaccess, disclosure or other loss of informatmuid disrupt our operations and could re
in legal claims or proceedings, liability under kthat protect the privacy of personal informatiand regulatory penalties, which may
adversely affect our business.

Our organizational documents and Delaware law magke it harder for us to be acquired without the cgent and cooperation of our
board of directors and management.

Several provisions of our organizational documants Delaware law may deter or prevent a takeovemat, including a takeover
attempt in which the potential purchaser offerpdg a per share price greater than the currenteharice of our common stock. Under the
terms of our certificate of incorporation, our baaf directors has the authority, without furthetien by the stockholders, to issue shares of
preferred stock in one or more series and to fxrtbhts, preferences, privileges and restrictibeseof. The ability to issue shares of preferred
stock could tend to discourage takeover or acguiisfiroposals not supported by our current boardireictors. In addition, we are subject to
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation,halkich restricts business combinations with sotoeldolders once the stockholder
acquires 15% or more of our common stock.

Future sales of our common stock by members of 8tern Family or other stockholders may depress stock price.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our cmmstock in the public market could cause a deergathe market price of our
common stock. We had 14,639,456 shares of comnook &sued and outstanding as of December 7, 2Dfithese shares, 3,748,254 are held
by our affiliates and are saleable under Rule ¥4 Securities Act of 1933, as amended, subgetti¢ volume limitations set forth in Rule
144. The remainder of our outstanding shares asdyftradable. In addition, options to purchase@aamately 1,294,271 shares of our
common stock were outstanding as of September®d,, Df which 992,607 were vested. In certain cabesexercise prices of such options
were higher than the current market price of oummmn stock. We may also issue additional sharesnmection with our business and may
grant additional stock options or restricted shéwesur employees, officers, directors and constsdtander our present or future equity
compensation plans or we may issue warrants td ffarties outside of such plans. As of Septembg2@0D1, there were 630,203 shares
available for such purpose with such shares availafder the Equity Compensation Plan and the Z162k Option Plan. If a significant
portion of these shares were sold in the publidketathe market value of our common stock coul@dheersely affected.

In the past, the Company’s Chairman Emeritus, Ar8tern and President and Chief Executive OffiGary Stern have adopted
prearranged stock trading plans in accordance guittielines specified by Rule 10b5-1 under the S8esrExchange Act of 1934, as amended.
While no such plans are in effect at present, &gt sales by the Stern family could have an estyeffect on market price for our common
stock.

We have the ability to issue preferred shares, veauts, convertible debt and other securities withativckholder approval which could
dilute the relative ownership interest of currentogkholders and adversely affect our share price.

Future sales of our equity-related securities éghblic market, including sales of our common lsmarsuant to our shelf-registration
statement, could adversely affect the trading psfoeur common stock and our ability to raise fuimdeew stock offerings. Our common shi
may be subordinate to classes of preferred shssaed in the future in the payment of dividendsathér distributions made with respect to
common shares, including distributions upon ligtimaor dissolution. Our certificate of incorpoiati permits our board of directors to issue
preferred shares without first obtaining stockholalgproval. If we issued preferred shares, thed#iadal securities may have dividend or
liquidation preferences senior to our common shdfege issue convertible preferred shares, a syurset conversion may dilute the current
common stockholders’ interest. We have similaritdd to issue convertible debt, warrants and o#ogiity securities.
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Climate change and related regulatory responses rimgact our business.

Climate change as a result of emissions of greesghgases is a significant topic of discussion aay generate federal and other
regulatory responses in the near future, includlmgimposition of a so-called “cap and trade” syst# is impracticable to predict with any
certainty the impact on our business of climatengesor the regulatory responses to it, althoughesegnize that they could be significant. -
most direct impact is likely to be an increasenergy costs, which would increase slightly our atieg costs, primarily through increased
utility and transportations costs. In addition,reesed energy costs could impact consumers arrdathigiy to incur and repay indebtedness.
However, it is too soon for us to predict with amgrtainty the ultimate impact, either directionallyquantitatively, of climate change and
related regulatory responses.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate anéwse our stock price to decline.

Because of the nature of our business, our quart@drating results may fluctuate, which may adsgraffect the market price of our
common stock. Our results may fluctuate as a redwahy of the following:

+ the timing and amount of collections on our consuraeeivable portfolios

» our inability to identify and acquire additionalrumer receivable portfolio

» adecline in the estimated future value of our comsr receivable portfolio recoverie
* increases in operating expenses associated witirdweth of our operation:

» general and economic market conditions;

» Prices we are willing to pay for consumer receiegidrtfolios.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment

We have not received any written comments regardingperiodic or current reports from the staftlod Securities and Exchange
Commission which were issued 180 days or more girgeSeptember 30, 2011 and that remain unresolved.
Item 2.  Properties.

Our executive and administrative offices are lodateEnglewood Cliffs, New Jersey, where we legggreximately 14,700 square feet
general office space for approximately $20,000menth, plus utilities. The lease expires on JulyZI15, with a two-year renewal option.

Our office in Houston, Texas occupies approxima2eB00 square feet of general office space for@pprately $3,800 per month. The
lease expires August 18, 2016.

Our office in Long Beach, New York occupies appnoately 800 square feet of general office spacap@roximately $1,350 per month.
The lease expires August 31, 2012.

We believe that our existing facilities are adegufat our current needs.

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business, we arelirin numerous legal proceedings. We regulaiilyaite collection lawsuits, using thi
party law firms, against consumers. Also, consumecasionally initiate litigation against us, iniaththey allege that we have violated a
federal or state law in the process of collectingleeir account. We do not believe that these argicourse matters are material to our bus
and financial condition. As of the date of thisagpwe were not involved in any material litigatism which we were a defendant.

ltem 4. (Removed and Reservel
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Iltem 5.

PART Il

Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitie

Since August 15, 2000, our common stock has beetedwn the NASDAQ National Market system undersymabol “ASFI.” On
November 30, 2011 there were 18 holders of recbodiocommon stock. High and low sales prices afammmon stock since October 1, 2!
as reported by NASDAQ are set forth below (suchtatians reflect inter-dealer prices without retadrkup, markdown, or commission, and

may not necessarily represent actual transactions):

2010
October 1, 2009 to December 31, 2(
January 1, 2010 to March 31, 2C
April 1, 2010 to June 30, 20!
July 1, 2010 to September 30, 2(

2011
October 1, 2010 to December 31, 2(
January 1, 2011 to March 31, 2C
April 1, 2011 to June 30, 20!
July 1, 2011 to September 30, 2(

Dividends

High

$ 8.4¢
8.1C
10.02
10.0z

$ 8.74
8.8z
8.6%
8.7t

Low

$6.5¢
6.0C
7.0¢
7.07

$6.6€
7.51
6.4C
7.4

During the year ended September 30, 2011, we dettpwrarterly cash dividends aggregating $1,170(80@2 per share, per quarter).
During the year ended September 30, 2010, we dettararterly cash dividends aggregating $1,161($0M2 per share, per quarter). Future
dividend payments will be at the discretion of board of directors and will depend upon our finahcondition, operating results, capital
requirements and any other factors our board efttiirs deems relevant. In addition, our agreemeititsour lender may, from time to time,

restrict our ability to pay dividends. Currenthetlk are no restrictions in place.

Purchases of Common Stock

We have a share repurchase program that authaiszeespurchase up to $20.0 million of shares ofammmon stock through June 20,
2012. The share repurchases may occur from tintier®through open market purchases at prevailincketgrices or through privately
negotiated transactions as permitted by secuftéigs and other legal requirements. The followingeasets forth information regarding our
repurchases or acquisitions of common stock dutiedourth quarter of the fiscal year ended Seperb, 2011.

Total Number Maximum Number
of Shares (or Approximate
Purchased as Dollar Value)
Total Part of Shares that
Number of Average of Publicly May Yet Be
Shares Price Paid Announced Purchased
(or Units) per Share Plans Under the Plans
Period Purchasec (or Unit) or Programs or Programs(1)
Repurchases from July 1, 2011 through July 31, . -0- -0- -0- $20,000,00
Repurchases from August 1, 2011 through Augusf@11 8,90( $7.9¢ 8,90( $19,930,00
Repurchases from September 1, 2011 through Septe3@be
2011 -0- -0- -0- $19,930,00

(1) In June 20, 2011, our board of directors authorthedepurchase of up to $20.0 million of shareswwfcommon stoclt
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Performance Graph

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fdrtfany of our filings under the Securities Act 883, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that might ircratp by reference this Form -K, in whole or in part, the following PerformanGraph
shall not be incorporated by reference into anyhsfilings.
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ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON OCT. 1, 2006
ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPT. 30, 2011

Period Ending

Company/Market/Peer Group

9/30/200¢ 9/30/2001 9/30/200¢ 9/30/200¢ 9/30/201( 9/30/2011

Asta Funding, Inc

$100.0( $102.6¢ $19.0¢ $21.0Z $ 21.4% $ 23.0]

NASDAQ Composite Inde

$100.0( $120.4: $93.9¢ $ 96.31 $108.4¢ $111.6¢

Peer Group Inde

$100.0( $ 85.52 $50.01 $49.2¢ $ 66.3¢ $ 65.2(

Companies in our Peer Group include CompuCredip@maition, Encore Capital Group, Inc., NCO Groug, through 2006), and

Portfolio Recovery Associates, Inc.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth a summary of oursmidated financial data as of and for the fivedisyears ended September 30, 2011.
The selected financial data for the five fiscalrgeended September 30, 2011, have been derivedduomudited consolidated financial
statements. The selected financial data preserfedvishould be read in conjunction with our cordaiéd financial statements, related notes,
other financial information included elsewherehistreport, See ltem 7. See “Management’s Discassial Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations”. Certain items in pyiears’ information have been reclassified to camfto the current year’s presentation.

Year Ended September 30,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share date
Operations Statement Da
Finance incom $42,61( $45,63: $ 70,15¢ $115,29¢ $138,35¢
Other income 557 21¢ 19¢ 25E 2,40¢
Total revenu 43,161 45,84¢ 70,35¢ 115,55( 140,76:
Costs and expense
General and administrati\ 21,801 23,21 25,91¢ 29,56! 25,45(
Interest expens 3,01¢ 4,36¢ 8,452 17,88! 18,24¢
Impairments 721 13,02¢ 183,50( 53,16( 9,09
Total expense 25,544 40,60¢ 217,86° 100,60: 52,79
Income (loss) before income tax 17,62: 5,241 (147,519 14,94¢ 87,96¢
Provisions (benefit) for income tax 7,102 2,112 (56,78) 6,11¢ 35,70t
Net income (loss $10,52: $ 3,12¢ $ (90,72H $ 8,82¢ $ 52,26¢
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 0.72 $ 0.22 $ (6.36) $ 0.62 $ 3.7¢
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: $ 071 $ 0.22 $ (6.3 $ 0.61 $ 3.5¢
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In millions)
Other Financial Datz
For the Year Ended September
Cash collection $ 81z $ 101.¢ $ 147. $ 208.C $ 281t
Portfolio purchases, at cc 7.5 8.C 19.€ 49.¢ 440.¢
Portfolio purchases, at fa 19.5 269.1 577.(C 1,456.! 10,891.¢
Return on average assets 4.1% 1.1% (23.9% 1.7% 12.(%
Return on average stockhold’ equity(1) 6.2% 2.C% (44.8% 3.6% 24.8%
Dividends declared per she $ 008 $ o008 $ o0.0¢ $ 01l€ $ O0.1€
At September 3(
Total asset 248.1 259.2 290.¢ 481.1 580.3
Total debi 71.€ 94.¢ 130.¢ 221.5 326.5
Total stockholder equity 173.C 161.¢ 157.¢ 247.¢ 237.5
Inception to Dat— September 3(
Cumulative aggregate purchases, at 31,915.! 31,896.( 31,626.¢ 31,049.¢ 29,593.¢

(1) The return on average assets is computed liginigvnet income by average total assets for theafiyear. The return on average
stockholders’ equity is computed by dividing netame by the average stockholders’ equity for thedli year. Both ratios have been

computed using beginning and perend balance:
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ltem 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drkResults of Operatior
Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaim@@rd-looking statements within the meaning of Bivate Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements ¢gfly are identified by use of terms such as “mawill”, “should”, “plan”, “expect”,
“anticipate”, “estimate”, and similar words, altrglusome forward-looking statements are expresdtatetitly. Forward-looking statements
represent our judgment regarding future eventswieutan give no assurance that such judgmentgreille to be correct. Such statements are
subject to risks and uncertainties that could caeseal results to differ materially and adverdetyn those projected in such forward-looking
statements. Certain factors which could materiaffgct our results and our future performance asedbed above under Item 1A “Risk
Factors” and below under “Critical Accounting P@&’. Forward-looking statements are inherentlyaitain as they are based on current
expectations and assumptions concerning futuretgeen are subject to numerous known and unknaosks end uncertainties. We caution
not to place undue reliance on these forward-logpkitatements, which are only predictions and spaékas of the date of this report. Except
as required by law, we undertake no obligationgdate or publicly announce revisions to any forwlaking statements. Unless the context
otherwise requires, the terms “we”, “us” “the Compg or “our” as used herein refer to Asta Fundihg;. and our subsidiaries.

Overview

We are primarily engaged in the business of aammirnanaging for our own account, servicing andvedng on portfolios of consumer
receivables. These portfolios generally consisiraf or more of the following types of consumer neigles:

» chargecoff receivable— accounts that have been writ-off by the originators and may have been previosslyiced by collectio
agencies

» sem-performing receivable— accounts where the debtor is making partial ogirter monthly payments, but the accounts may |
been writte-off by the originators; and in limited circumstasg

» performing receivable—accounts where the debtor is making regular morghijyments that may or may not have been delingoent
the past

We acquire these consumer receivable portfoli@ssagnificant discount to the amount actually owgdhe borrowers. We acquire these
portfolios after a qualitative and quantitative lgsis of the underlying receivables and calculhgegurchase price so that our estimated cash
flow offers us an adequate return on our investraétet servicing expenses. After purchasing a pbotfwe actively monitor its performance
and review and adjust our collection and serviatigtegies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors ahérstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémed transactions and auctions in
which sellers of receivables seek bids from seyarlqualified debt purchasers. We pursue new aitoguis of consumer receivable portfolios
on an ongoing basis through:

» our relationships with industry participants, fical institutions, collection agencies, investonsl @ur financing source
» Dbrokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivab& portfolios; ant
» other sources

Critical Accounting Policies
We account for our investments in consumer recé@vpbrtfolios, using either:
 the interest method; «
 the cost recovery methao
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As we believe our extensive liquidating experieimceertain asset classes such as distressed caediteceivables, consumer loan
receivables and mixed consumer receivables hagatatwe use the interest method when we believeaneaeasonably estimate the timing of
the cash flows. In those situations where we difyemair acquisitions into other asset classes ifctvive do not possess the same expertise or
history, or we cannot reasonably estimate the tijnoiiithe cash flows, we utilize the cost recovestimd of accounting for those portfolios of
receivables.

We account for our investment in finance receivabiging the interest method under the guidanceS& 810. Static pools of accounts
are established. These pools are aggregated basmtain common risk criteria. Each static pookisorded at cost and is accounted for as a
single unit for the recognition of income, prindipayments and loss provision. We currently consideaggregation portfolios of accounts,
purchased within the same fiscal quarter, that igdiyehave the following characteristics:

* same issuer/originat

» same underlying credit quali

 similar geographic distribution of the accou

» similar age of the receivable a

» same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuations, etc.

After determining that an investment will yield adequate return on our acquisition cost after sewyifees, including court costs, which
are expensed as incurred, we use a variety oftgtieéi and quantitative factors to determine thareged cash flows. The following variables
are analyzed and factored into our original estisat

» the number of collection agencies previously attiéimgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
» the average balance of the receivak
» the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtie more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective)

» past history of performance of similar assets -wapurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beliee have built significant history
on how these receivables will liquidate and castvf

* number of months since cha-off;
» payments made since che-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

+ the locations of the debtors as there are betiégsto attempt to collect in and ultimately weénbetter predictability of the
liquidations and the expected cash flo

» financial wherewithal of the selle

 jobs or property of the debtors found within politis-with our business model. Debtors with jobs or grtypare more likely to repay
their obligation and conversely, debtors withodttg@r property are less likely to repay their odalign; anc

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtiginal issuer

We will obtain and utilize as appropriate inputlirding, but not limited to, monthly collection peations and liquidation rates, from our
third party collection agencies and attorneysuashér evidentiary matter, to assist us in develgmiollection strategies and in modeling the
expected cash flows for a given portfolio.

We acquire accounts that have experienced detgdoraf credit quality between origination and thete of our acquisition of the
accounts. The amount paid for a portfolio of acdsueaflects our determination that it is probabkewill be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the portfolio of accounts’ contracttems.
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We consider the expected payments and estimasntbent and timing of undiscounted expected priricipterest and other cash flows for
each acquired portfolio coupled with expected dhshs from accounts available for sales. The exoédkis amount over the cost of the
portfolio, representing the excess of the accowa&h flows expected to be collected over the ampaid, is accreted into income recognized
on finance receivables over the expected remaiifegf the portfolio.

We believe we have significant experience in adagicertain distressed consumer receivable pooat a significant discount to the
amount actually owed by underlying debtors. We @eghese portfolios only after both qualitativedaquantitative analyses of the underlying
receivables are performed and a calculated purghréseis paid so that we believe our estimateth ¢iasv offers us an adequate return on our
acquisition costs including servicing expenses.ifiauhlly, when considering larger portfolio purales of accounts, or portfolios from issuers
from whom we have little or limited experience, have the added benefit of soliciting our third parllection agencies and attorneys for t
input on liquidation rates and at times incorpogateh input into the price we offer for a giventfmio and the estimates we use for our
expected cash flows.

As a result of the a challenging economic environinaad the impact it has had on collections, fatfpbo purchases acquired in fiscal
year 2009 we extended our time frame of the extieotaf recovering 100% of our invested capitaatds-39 month period from an 18-
28 month period, and the expectation of recovet®@140% over seven years from the previous fisa g&pectation. The 2009 time frame of
expectations has remained in force for fiscal @Hrl. We routinely monitor these expectations ajdire actual cash flows and, in the event
the cash flows are below our expectations and Weuaethere are no reasons relating to mere tirdiffgrences or explainable delays (such as
can occur particularly when the court system i®ined) for the reduced collections, an impairmaenieicorded on portfolios accounted for on
the interest method. Conversely, in the event #sh ¢dlows are in excess of our expectations andeifison is due to timing, we would defer the
“excess” collection as deferred revenue.

We use the cost recovery method when collectiors particular pool of accounts cannot be reasonafglglicted. Under the cost
recovery method, no finance income is recognized tine cost of the portfolio has been fully recos@. A pool can become fully amortized
(zero carrying balance on the balance sheet) wglillgenerating cash collections. In this caskcash collections are recognized as finance
income when received.

Results of Operations

The following discussion of our operations and ficial condition should be read in conjunction witlr financial statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this report. In thdiseussions, most percentages and dollar amoanmtstbeen rounded to aid presentation. As a
result, all such figures are approximations.

Year Ended September 30

2011 2010 2009
Finance income 98.1% 99.5%  99.7%
Other income 1.3% 0.5% 0.2%
Total revenu 10(% 100.% 100.(%
General and administrative expen 50.5% 50.%  36.8%
Interest expens 7% 9.5% 12.(%
Impairments 1.7% 28.4% 261.1%
Income (loss) before income tax 40.2% 11.4% (209.9%
Provision (benefit) for income tax 16.5% 4.6% (80.)%
Net income (loss 24.4%  6.8% (129.1)%
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Year Ended September 30, 2011 Compared to the ¥eaded September 30, 2010

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2011, fineneoene decreased $3.0 million or 6.6% to $42.6iamlfrom
$45.6 million for the year ended September 30, 20b@ decrease is primarily due to the lower l@fegdortfolio purchases over the last two
years and, as a result, an increased percentage pbrtfolio balances are in the later stageseiirtyield curves. In addition, during the fou
quarter of fiscal 2011 there was a one time chafggproximately $1.3 million against finance inaby a third party collection company that
invoiced us for previously unbilled collections tog-inance income for the year ended Septembe2®, excluding this one time charge,
would have been $44,439,000, down $1.4 millior3.486. During the fiscal year ended September 301 2@e acquired $19.5 million in face
value of new portfolios at a cost of $7.5 milliow@mpared to $269.0 million of face value portslat a cost of approximately $8.0 million,
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 20Xrf€éie income recognized from fully amortized pdid(zero basis revenue) wis
34.3 million for the years ended September 30, 2042010, respectively.

Net collections decreased $20.7 million or 20.3%8&a.2 million for the fiscal year ended Septen@@&r2011, from $101.9 million for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. Durswgfiyear 2011, gross collections decreased 10&429.7 from $157.6 million for fiscal
year 2010, reflecting the lower level of purchasks,age of our portfolios and the slowdown inéeenomy. Commissions and fees associ
with gross collections from our third party colliect agencies and attorneys decreased $7.2 millidr2 ®% as compared to the same period in
the prior year and averaged 37.4% of collectiomsHe fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 as aeaipa 35.3% in the same prior year
period. As previously mentioned the $1.3 millioredime charge impacted commissions and fees bypereentage point. Commissions and
fees excluding this one time charge would have 36e4%.

Further, as we have curtailed our purchases ofpaetfolios of consumer receivables in the lastéhiiscal years, finance income was
negatively impacted and we expect will continudémegatively impacted going forward since we haatebeen replacing our receivables
acquired for liquidation. Instead, we focused au@ng our debt and being highly disciplined in portfolio purchases. We continue to rev
potential portfolio acquisitions regularly and willirchase such portfolios when we believe the mgetwill yield our desired rate of return.
There were no accretable yield adjustments recaldeidg the fiscal years ended September 30, 26d12810.

Other income. Other income of $557,000 and $218,000 for ibeaf years ended September 30, 2011 and 201@atdsgly, consisted
primarily of service fee income and interest incdnoen banks.

General and administrative expensesFor the year ended September 30, 2011, geaedahdministrative expenses decreased
$1.4 million or 6.0% to $21.8 million from $23.2lfion for the year ended September 30, 2010. Theedese is due primarily to lower
collection expenses, including lower attorney faed settlements associated with debtor lawsuigeigrofessional fees, and the lower non-
cash item of amortization expense, offset by higtwer-cash stock based compensation expense.

Interest expense. For the year ended September 30, 2011, interpsinse decreased $1.4 million or 31.0% to $3ldomirom
$4.4 million during the year ended September 3@02The decrease was due to the repayment of tstaading borrowings on our
subordinated debt and the reduction of our Recégabinancing Agreement (described below undecé#ption “Receivables Financing
Agreement”) loan balance during the year endede®eipér 30, 2011, as compared to the year endedrSiepte0, 2010. Additionally, the
average interest rate during the year ended Septed@h 2010 on the Receivable Financing Agreemeust3v75% as compared to 3.77%
during the year ended September 30, 2010. Theoratiee subordinated debt — related party was ise@érom 6.25% to 10.0% during fiscal
year 2010; however, the principal balance was p#ith December 2010, with little impact on thecfid year 2011 expens

Impairments. We recorded impairments of $720,000 duringytber ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $li8dh for the
year ended September 30, 2010. The impairmentdedan fiscal year 2010 was related to the PodfBlurchase. During fiscal year 201
significant servicer of accounts of the PortfoliarP
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chase declaring bankruptcy which caused a delagllactions as accounts were transferred to otheticers. Although we believe that value
remains in the Portfolio Purchase, the delay hgmaoted projections of collections of the Portfdfiorchase.

Income tax expense (benefity Income tax expense for fiscal year 2011 of $fillion consists of a current tax expense of $2illian
and a deferred tax expense of $4.6 million. Thé $illion deferred tax expense consists of $3.0ionilof federal tax expense and $1.6 mill
in state deferred expense. Included in the defdee@xpense in fiscal year 2010 is a $5.6 miltime up of federal income taxes from fiscal
year 2009. Upon the completion of our federal &ty for fiscal year 2009 and the applicationtfar tax refund completed earlier in 1
second quarter, the federal tax refund estima$t6fmillion was revised upward to approximately $&flion which caused the $5.6 million
true up in the current year. This change was d@edombination of applying the federal tax net afiag loss carryback and the recognition of
the benefit of the state net operating loss carwdiods for federal tax purposes, and other timiifigidtnces applied to the current year tax
return. These adjustments did not affect the stat¢mf operations and yielded a net adjustment &etvthe federal income tax receivable and
the deferred tax asset. The true up for the figeat 2010 federal tax return was not material.

Net income. For the year ended September 30, 2011, nefiedocreased $7.4 million to $10.5 million from $3nillion for the year
ended September 30, 2010, primarily reflecting eased impairments and other expenses, partiaigtolfiy higher income taxes. Net income
per diluted share for the year ended Septembe2®) increased $0.50 per diluted share to $0.72ipeed share from $0.22 per diluted share
for the year ended September 30, 2010.

Year Ended September 30, 2010 Compared to the ¥eaed September 30, 2009

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2010, finencoene decreased $24.6 million or 35.0% to $45J6anifrom
$70.2 million for the year ended September 30, 26@%nce income has decreased primarily due ttother level of portfolio purchases over
the last two years and, as a result, an increasegptage of our portfolio balances are in the Istiiges of their yield curves. The average
outstanding level of consumer receivable accourdsieed for liquidation decreased from $328.6 millfor the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2009 to $177.6 million for fiscalryeaded September 30, 2010, reflecting a reduced ¢ portfolio purchases and the
recognition of impairments in the fourth quarterfistal year 2010 of approximately $13.0 million.dddition, we recorded $143.7 million in
impairments in the second half of fiscal year 2a@ring the fiscal year ended September 30, 20E0aequired $269.1 million in face value
new portfolios at a cost of $8.0 million as comphie $577.0 million of face value portfolios at@st$19.6 million, during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2009. Finance income recogfia@adully amortized portfolios (zero basis revejuwas$ 34.3 million and$
40.7 million for the years ended September 30, 20102009, respectively.

Net collections decreased $45.5 million or 30.9%101.9 million for the fiscal year ended Septeng@r2010, from $147.4 million for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. Durswafiyear 2010, gross collections decreased 2988%57.6 from $224.5 million for fiscal
year 2009, reflecting the lower level of purchasks,age of our portfolios and the slowdown inéeenomy. Commissions and fees associ
with gross collections from our third party colliect agencies and attorneys decreased $21.5 mili@7.8% as compared to the same peric
the prior year and averaged 35.3% of collectiomsHe fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 as aenipa 34.3% in the same prior year
period.

Further, as we have curtailed our purchases ofpuatfolios of consumer receivables in the lastéhiscal years, finance income was
negatively impacted and we expect will continubémegatively impacted going forward since we haatebeen replacing our receivables
acquired for liquidation. Instead, we have focusededucing our debt and being highly disciplinee@ur portfolio purchases. We continue to
review potential portfolio acquisitions regularlgcawill be buyers at the right price, where we é&edi the purchase will yield our desired rate of
return. There were no accretable yield adjustmesusrded during the fiscal years ended Septembhe2@®® and 2009.

Other income. Other income of $218,000 and $199,000 for ibeaf year ended September 30, 2010 and 2009,atdsglg, consisted
primarily of service fee income and interest incdnoen banks.

31



Table of Contents

General and administrative expensesFor the year ended September 30, 2010, geaedahdministrative expenses decreased
$2.7 million or 10.4% to $23.2 million from $25.91kon for the year ended September 30, 2009. Logeareral and administrative expenses is
due primarily to the closing of the Pennsylvanili center in February 2009, lower collection exps)grimarily the discontinuation in May
2009 of the $275,000 monthly management fee pagdsignificant servicer relative to the PortfoliorBhase, and lower telephone expense and
professional fees. We have improved the efficievicthe telephone collection management system,wtd@duced costs without a significant
impact on the results from the volume of calls.

Interest expense. For the year ended September 30, 2010, interpsinse decreased $4.1 million or 48.3% to $4ldomirom
$8.5 million during the year ended September 30920he decrease was due to the repayment of tise&aading borrowings under our line of
credit and the reduction of our Receivables Finagnéigreement (described below under the captiorcéRmbles Financing Agreement”) loan
balance during the year ended September 30, 28k®mapared to the year ended September 30, 20@Btidkahlly, the average interest rate
during the year ended September 30, 2010 on theiRdae Financing Agreement was 3.77% as compardd2% during the year ended
September 30, 2009. The rate on the subordinateid-deelated party was increased from 6.25% to %0ddiring fiscal year 2010; however,
the principal balance was paid down to $4.4 millituming fiscal year 2010 from $8.2 million at Septeer 30, 2009. The average outstanding
borrowings decreased from $168.1 million to $11Rillion for the years ended September 30, 2009281, respectively.

Impairments. Impairments of $13.0 million were recorded lsyduring the year ended September 30, 2010 as cethjia
$183.5 million for the year ended September 309200e impairment recorded in fiscal year 2010 vedested to the Portfolio Purchase.
During fiscal year 2010 a significant servicer ofaunts of the Portfolio Purchase declared bankyuphich caused a delay in collections as
accounts were transferred to other servicers. Aljhovalue remains in the Portfolio Purchase, thaydeas impacted projections of collections
of the Portfolio Purchase. Included in the fisoady2009 impairments is approximately $108.5 nrillielated to the interest method portfolios
and $75.0 million related to cost recovery methodfplios, including $53.9 applied to the PortfoRairchase. For the interest method
portfolios, relative collections with respect tor@xpectations were deteriorating and this detation was confirmed by our third party
collection agencies and attorneys. The deterianatidnich had impacted us throughout the year, beaawre significant during the fourth
quarter of the fiscal year ended September 30,.20608cal year 2010, the entire impairment whicks determined by us in connection the
preparation of our year end financial statemengs taken in the fourth quarter and related to tréfdtio Purchase resulting in a write down
net realizable value of $91.8 million at Septenik@r2010.

Income tax expense (benefit) Income tax expense for fiscal year 2010 of $Rillion consists of a current tax benefit of $&ilion
and a deferred tax expense of $5.3 million. Inctliskethe deferred tax expense is a $5.6 millioe tp of federal income taxes from fiscal year
2009. Upon the completion of our Federal tax reforrfiscal year 2009 and the application for tae tefund completed earlier in the second
quarter, the Federal tax refund estimate of $46anilvas revised upward to approximately $52 millishich caused the $5.6 million true uj
the current year. This change was due to a combimat applying the Federal tax net operating lcasyback and the recognition of the ber
of the state net operating loss carryforwards édefal tax purposes, and other timing differengggdied to the current year tax return. These
adjustments did not affect the statement of opmmatand yielded a net adjustment between the feideane tax receivable and the deferred
tax asset.

Income tax benefit for fiscal year 2009 of $56.8liom consists of a federal tax benefit of $46.0liom and a state tax benefit of $10.8
million. The state deferred tax benefit is inclesf a $4.4 million valuation allowance. Althoudtetcarryforward period for state income tax
purposes is up to twenty years, given the econeonditions, such economic environment could limmdvgth over a reasonable time period to
realize the deferred tax asset. The Company detedrthe time period allowance for carryforwardigside a reasonable period to forecast
realization of the deferred tax asset, thereforegrized the deferred tax asset valuation allowance

Net income (loss). For the year ended September 30, 2010, netnied¢ocreased $93.9 million to $3.1 million from @0$7 million loss
for the year ended September 30, 2009, primarflgetng decreased impairments and other expepsesially offset by reduced finance
income and higher income taxes. Net income petatilshare for the year ended September 30, 20i€ased $6.58 per diluted share to $0.22
per diluted share from ($6.36) per diluted shareHe year ended September 30, 2009.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of cash from operations is ctilbms on the receivable portfolios we have acaguif@ur primary uses of cash include
repayments of debt, our purchases of consumervadei portfolios, interest payments, costs involirethe collections of consumer
receivables, taxes and dividends, if approvedhénpast, we relied significantly upon our lenderpriovide the funds necessary for the purc
of consumer receivables acquired for liquidation.

Receivables Financing Agreement

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima®&227 million under the Receivables Financing Agrest, as amended in July
2007, December 2007, May 2008 and February 200®9BMO, in order to finance the Portfolio PurchaBlee Portfolio Purchase had a
purchase price of $300 million (plus 20% of netmpants after Palisades XVI recovers 150% of its pase price plus cost of funds, which
recovery has not yet occurred). Prior to the modifon, discussed below, the debt was full recoardg to Palisades XVI and bore an interest
rate of approximately 170 basis points over LIBORe original term of the agreement was three y&drs. term was extended by each of the
Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Amendments to teedi/ables Financing Agreement as discussed bdlog/Receivables Financing
Agreement contained cross default provisions rdledghe IDB Credit Facility. This cross defauludd only occur in the event of a non-
payment in excess of $2.5 million of the IDB Crefekicility. Proceeds received as a result of theeali¢ctions from the Portfolio Purchase are
applied to interest and principal of the underlyiogn. The Portfolio Purchase is serviced by PdésaCollection LLC, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which has engaged uizadfil subservicers for a majority of the Portfdhiarchase.

Since the inception of the Receivables FinancingeAment amendments have been signed to revisaigddoms of the Receivables
Financing Agreement. Currently we are operatingaurtide Fifth Amendment.

On October 26, 2010, Palisades XVI entered intdFifth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreet (the “Fifth Amendmen}’
The effective date of the Fifth Amendment is Octabg, 2010. The Fifth Amendment (i) extends theiextjpn date of the Receivables
Financing Agreement to April 30, 2014, (ii) redut¢les minimum monthly total payment to $750,000) éiccelerates the Company’s guarantee
credit enhancement of $8,700,000, which was pa@hgxecution of the Fifth Amendment, (iv) elimirmthe Company’s limited guarantee of
repayment of the loans outstanding by Palisades &M (v) revises the definition of “Borrowing BaBeficit”, as defined in the Receivables
Financing Agreement, to mean the excess, if an§086#6 of the loans outstanding over the borrowiageb

In connection with the Fifth Amendment, on OctoBér 2010, the Company entered into the Omnibus iFetion Agreement (the
“Termination Agreement”). The limited recourse sidinated guaranty discussed under the Fourth Amentinvas eliminated upon signing
the Termination Agreement.

The aggregate minimum repayment obligations requireder the Fifth Amendment, including interest anidcipal, for fiscal years
ending September 30, 2012 and 2013 are $9 millwmally, and, for the fiscal year ended SeptemBef814, is approximately $5 million
(seven months).

On September 30, 2011 and 2010, the outstandimg&@lon this loan was approximately $71.6 millemg $90.5 million, respectively.
The applicable interest rate at September 30, 20812010 was 3.72% and 3.76%, respectively. Theagednterest rate of the Receivable
Financing Agreement was 3.75% and 3.77% for thesyeaded September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Other significant amendments to the Receivablearttimg Agreement are as follows:

Second Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreerdated December 27, 2007 revised the amortizatibadule of the loan from
25 months to approximately 31 months. BMO chargalis®des XVI a fee of $475,000 which was paid aruday 10, 2008. The fee was
capitalized and is being amortized over the remaitife of the Receivables Financing Agreement.

Third Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreemaatted May 19, 2008 extended the payments of thettmaugh December 2010.
The lender also increased the interest rate frobnbhsis points over LIBOR to
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approximately 320 basis points over LIBOR, subjecutomatic reduction in the future if additiosabpital contributions are made by the
parent of Palisades XVI.

Fourth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendaied February 20, 2009, among other thingsp\iieted the collection rate
minimum to $1 million per month (plus interest grds) as an average for each period of three catigeenonths, (ii) provided for an
automatic extension of the maturity date from Apfll 2011 to April 30, 2012 should the outstandiatance be reduced to $25 million or less
by April 30, 2011 and (iii) permanently waived theevious termination events. The interest rate mesnanchanged at approximately 320 basis
points over LIBOR, subject to automatic reductiorhie future should certain collection milestonesatiained.

As additional credit support for repayment by Raliss XVI of its obligations under the Receivablemkcing Agreement and as an
inducement for BMO to enter into the Fourth Amendimée Company provided BMO a limited recourséosdinated guaranty, secured by
the assets of the Company, in an amount not toeex$8.0 million plus reasonable costs of enforcaraad collection. Under the terms of the
guaranty, BMO cannot exercise any recourse agdiestompany until the earlier of (i) five yearsrfréhe date of the Fourth Amendment and
(i) the termination of the Company’s existing samriending facility or any successor senior fagilit

The Company’s average debt obligation (excludirgsibordinated debt — related party) for the figegrs ended September 30, 2011
and 2010, was approximately $77.2 million and $38ilion, respectively. The average interest rats8.75% and 3.81%, respectively, for
years ended September 30, 2011 and 2

Bank Leumi Credit Agreement

On December 14, 2009 Asta Funding, Inc. and itsiglidries other than Palisades XVI, entered ineoBank Leumi Credit Agreement
which permits maximum principal advances of up@mdllion. The term of the agreement was througleddeber 31, 2010. The interest rate is
a floating rate equal to the Bank Leumi ReferenateRlus 2%, with a floor of 4.5%. The loan is seduby collateral consisting of all of the
assets of the Company other than those of Palisfdedn addition, other collateral for the loanrmists of a pledge by GMS Family Invest:
LLC, an investment company owned by members oBtieen family in the form of cash and securitieshwatvalue of 133% of the loan
commitment. There are no financial covenant resins for the Leumi Credit Agreement. On Decembgr2D09, approximately $3.6 million
of the Bank Leumi credit line was used to reduceetm the remaining balance of the IDB Credit kgcdescribed below. The Leumi Credit
Agreement balance was reduced to zero in Janud. 2Zhe Company is working with its bank on a needd facility with a larger credit
limit.

Subordinated Debt — Related Party

On April 29, 2008, we obtained a subordinated Iparsuant to a subordinated promissory note fronftdraily Entity. The Family Entity
is a greater than 5% stockholder of the Companyisibdneficially owned and controlled by Arthur Btea director of the Company, Gary
Stern, the President, Chairman and Chief Exec@iffieer of the Company, and members of their fagsiliThe loan, originally in the aggreg
principal amount of $8,246,000, currently accrugsrest at a rate of 10.0% per annum, is payakdedst only each quarter until maturity on
December 31, 2010, subject to repayment in futhefCompany’s loan facility.

The Family Entity loan was extended in December92@0December 31, 2010 with a new interest rate¢gfe January 2010) of
10.0% per annum (formerly the rate was 6.25%). @wdry 27, 2010, the Company repaid approximat@80¥ 40 of the subordinated loan,
delivering approximately $787,500 to the FamilyiBnwhich, the Family Entity delivered its portiaf the loan payment to Gary Stern, who
used the proceeds to exercise the 300,000 stodnsmwarded him in 2000. We made additional legrayments of $1.5 million each on
February 17, 2010 and March 26, 2010. The subaelinaan balance was approximately $4.4 million $&&® million as of September 30,
2010 and 2009, respectively. On November 16, 2@&0nade an additional $2.0 million loan repaymerthe Family Entity, reducing the lo
balance to $2.4 million.

The subordinated loan was incurred by us to resmviain issues with a significant servicer. Proseaf the subordinated loan were used
to reduce the balance due on our line of credit wie IDB Bank Group on June 13, 2008. This facilas secured by substantially all of the
assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, otfaerthe assets of Palisades XVI.
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IDB Credit Facility

The Eighth Amendment to the IDB Credit Facility emgtd into on July 10, 2009 provided for an inifidD million line of credit from the
Bank Group for portfolio purchases and working talpand was scheduled to reduce to zero by DeceB1her009. The IDB Credit Facility
provided for interest at the lesser of LIBOR plasapplicable margin, or the prime rate minus arliepple margin based on certain leverage
ratios, with a minimum rate of 5.5%. The IDB Crdgé#cility was collateralized by all assets of the{pany other than the assets of Palisades
XVI and contained financial and other covenants TDB Credit Facility’s commitment termination datas December 31, 2009. This IDB
Credit Facility was repaid on December 14, 2009.

Cash Flow

As of September 30, 2011, our cash and cash eguigaincreased $9.0 million to $84.3 million, fr&m5.3 million at September 30,
2010. Although our cash flow remains strong we hdiversified some of our cash flow into other intwesnts.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $h8illion during the fiscal year ended SeptemberZil,1, compared to net cash
provided by operating activities of $68.7 millicor fthe fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. Theedse is primarily due to the significant
federal tax refund received in fiscal year 2010t &ssh provided by investing activities was $16ilion during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011, as compared to net cash prbbidevesting activities of $39.2 million durinige fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.
The decrease is primarily due to lower collectiohsonsumer receivables acquired for liquidatiord ¢he purchase of available for sales
securities during the year ended September 30, @0Tbmpared to the same prior year period. Nét gsad in financing activities was
$24.1 million during the fiscal year ended Septendfe 2011, as compared to cash used in finanatigitées of $35.0 million in the prior
period. The decrease in net cash used was printréyto a smaller pay down of debt during the figear ended September 30, 2011
compared to the prior period.

Our cash requirements have been and will contiaueetsignificant and have, in the past, dependeskternal financing to acquire
consumer receivables and operate the businessfiGghrequirements include repayments under am-recourse debt facilities, investment
in consumer receivable portfolios, litigation reldtreceivables, interest payments, costs involwele collections of consumer receivables,
taxes. In addition, dividends are paid if approlgdhe board of directors. Acquisitions have beearfced primarily through cash flows from
operating activities and a credit facility. We leek we will be less dependent on a credit fadilitthe short-term as our cash flow from
operations will be sufficient to purchase portfelEnd operate the business. However, as the ¢olilemivironment remains challenging, we
may seek additional funding.

We are cognizant of the current market fundameinatise debt purchase and company acquisition ntakikkeich, because of significant
supply and tight capital availability, could resmitincreased buying opportunities. Accordingly, filed a $100 million shelf registration
statement with the SEC which was declared effectivéng the third quarter of 2010. As of the datéhis report, we have not issued any
securities under this registration statement. Titeane of any future transaction(s) is subject &wkat conditions. In addition, due to these
opportunities, we continue to work with our curréank group and others on a new and expanded éadityf.

Our business model affords us the ability to sedloants on an opportunistic basis. While we hatecansummated any significant sales
from our Portfolio Purchase, we launched a saliestéh order to attempt to enhance our cash flod pay down our debt faster. The results
are slower than expected for a variety of factmmduding a slow resale market, similar to the éase in pricing we are seeing in general.

During the first quarter of 2012, we have invest&dB million in the litigation funding business tvia focus on investing in personal
injury claims. We are working with an industry lesdvho sources and manages these types of invetstmen
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Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual gdions in future fiscal years:

Payments Due By Period

More Than
Less Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long Term Debt Obligation $71,604,00 $9,000,00! $62,604,00 $ — $ =
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 1,183,001 $ 307,00( $ 584,00( $292,00( —
Total $72,787,00 $9,307,001 $63,188,00 $292,00( —

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2011, we did not have anyioglships with unconsolidated entities or finangattners, such as entities often
referred to as structured finance or special pugugities, established for the purpose of fatititnoff-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. As sugh,are not materially exposed to any financingyiliity, market or credit risk that could ar
if we had engaged in such relationships.

The following table shows the changes in finan@eirables, including amounts paid to acquire newf@ios:

Year Ended September 30

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In millions)

Balance at beginning of peri $147.( $208.: $449.( $545.¢ $ 257.:
Acquisitions of finance receivables, net of buyls 7.5 8.C 19.€ 49.¢ 440.¢
Cash collections from debtors applied to principgl) (38.9) (55.1) (69.1) (81.7) (114.9)
Cash collections represented by account saleseabfaliprincipal(1 (0.2 (1.2 (8.2 (11.0 (29.1)
Impairments/Portfolio write dow (0.7) (23.0 (183.5 (53.9 (9.2
Effect of foreign exchang — — 0.4 (0.€) —
Balance at end of peric $115.2 $147.( $ 208.2 $449.( $ 545.¢

(1) Cash collections applied to principal considtsash collections less income recognized on firarceivables plus amounts received by us
from the sale of consumer receivable portfoliothicd parties

(2) In 2007, includes put backs of purchased adsowgturned to the seller totaling $5.5 milliont Backs are considered not material for all
other yearpresented

Supplementary Information on Consumer Receivabteddbos:

Portfolio Purchases

Year Ended September 30,

2011 2010 2009

(In millions)

Aggregate Purchase Pri $75 $ 8C $ 19.€
Aggregate Portfolio Face Amou 19.5 269.1 577.(

The prices we pay for our consumer receivable plog are dependent on many criteria includingage of the portfolio, the number of
third party collection agencies and attorneys ki@ate been involved in the collection process aedgographical distribution of the portfolio.
When we pay higher prices for portfolios which
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are performing or fresher, we believe it is nathat sacrifice of our expected returns. Price flattns for portfolio purchases from quarter to
quarter or year to year are primarily indicativettod overall mix of the types of portfolios we gérchasing.

Schedule of Portfolios by Income Recognition Categp

September 30, 201, September 30, 201! September 30, 200!
Cost Interest Cost Interest Cost Interest
Recovery Method Recovery Method Recovery Method
Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios
(In millions)
Original Purchase Price
(at period end $ 443.: $ 787.z $ 442r $ 780.t $ 442: $ 7728
Cumulative Aggregate Managed Portfolios (at pe
end) 13,915.0 17,985.( 13,913.0 17,966.. 13,884.! 17,725.¢
Receivable Carrying Valu
(at period end 84.C 31.2 100.7 46.2 137.¢ 70.€
Finance Income Earned (for the respective pel 2.7 39.¢ 1.7 43.¢ 2.t 67.7
Total Cash Flows (for the respective peri 19.€ 61.€ 26.C 75.€ 47.C 100.4

The original purchase price reflects what we paidtfie receivables from 1998 through the end ofélspective period. The cumulative
aggregate managed portfolio balance is the origiggtegate amount owed by the borrowers at the&tite respective period. Additional
differences between year to year period end batamag result from the transfer of portfolios betwélge interest method and the cost reco
method. We purchase consumer receivables at stib$tdincounts from the face amount. We recordrfoeincome on our receivables under
either the cost recovery or interest method. Thkeivable carrying value represents the currensstinghe receivables after collections and
amortization of the original price.

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Collections

Represented Finance

By Account Income
Year Sales Recognized
2011 $ 390,000 $ 155,00(
2010 3,485,00! 2,272,00!
2009 8,662,00! 3,085,00!
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Portfolio Performance (1)

The following table summarizes our historical politf purchase price and cash collections on interethod portfolios on an annual
vintage basis since October 1, 2001 through Seme®) 2011.

Total

Net Cash Estimated
Collections Estimated Total Collections
Purchase Purchase Including Remaining Estimated as a Percentage
Period Price(2) Cash Sales(3) Collections(4) Collections(5) of Purchase Prict
2001 $ 65,120,00 $105,617,00 $ — $105,617,00 162%
2002 36,557,00 48,238,00 — 48,238,00 132%
2003 115,626,00 218,596,00 — 218,596,00 18<%
2004 103,743,00 187,774,00 113,00( 187,887,00 181%
2005 126,023,00 218,563,00 2,695,00! 221,258,00 17€%
2006 163,392,00 258,089,00 5,958,00! 264,047,00 162%
2007 109,235,00 99,253,00 16,495,00 115,748,00 10€%
2008 26,626,00 45,589,00 157,00( 45,746,000 172%
2009 19,127,00 29,201,00 4,888,00! 34,089,00 17&%
2010 7,698,001 12,752,00 1,295,001 14,047,00 182%
2011 6,620,00! 1,540,001 7,06500! 8,605,00! 13C%

(1) Total collections do not represent full collectimfgshe Company with respect to this or any othear

(2) Purchase price refers to the cash paid tolergelacquire a portfolio less the purchase prédended by a seller due to the return of non-
compliant accounts (also defined as-backs), plus third party commissiol

(3) Cash collections include: net collections from third-party collection agencies and attorneys, collestiivam our ir-house efforts an
collections represented by account se

(4) Does not include estimated collections from poitfothat are zero bas

(5) Total estimated collections refer to the actualaash collections, including cash sales, plus edéchremaining collection

We do not anticipate collecting the majority of hechased principal amounts. Accordingly, theed#hce between the carrying value of
the portfolios and the gross receivables is nacatile of future finance income from these accewtquired for liquidation. Since we
purchased these accounts at significant discowetsnticipate collecting only a portion of the fagaounts.

For the year ended September 30, 2011, we recabfiince income of $2.7 million under the cosoresry method because we
collected $2.7 million in excess of our purchadeeon certain of these portfolios. In addition, @&ned $39.9 million of finance income ur
the interest method based on actuarial computatidwsh, in turn, are based on actual collectionsrduthe period and on what we project to
collect in future periods. During the year endegt8eber 30, 2011, we purchased portfolios withggregate purchase price of $7.5 million
with a face value (gross contracted amount) of $idillion.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stadel&oard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdaASU”) No. 2011-08,
Intangibles— Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) (“ASU 2011-08%hich amends and simplify the rules related tarigsgoodwill for
impairment. The revised guidance allows an entitpnake an initial qualitative evaluation, basedtmnentity’s events and circumstances, to
determine whether it is more likely than not the fair value of a reporting unit is less tharcisrying amount. The results of this qualitative
assessment determine whether it is necessary faripethe currently required two-step impairment.tédfie new guidance is effective for
annual and interim goodwill impairment tests parfed for fiscal years beginning after December 08,12 As allowed by ASU 2011-08, we
early adopted this guidance for the fiscal yearl2§dodwill impairment test.
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In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011@&nprehensive Income (Topic 220) (“ASU 2011-0&"prder to improve the
comparability, consistency and transparency ofrfia reporting and to increase the prominenceenfi$ reported in other comprehensive
income. This standard eliminates the option togmesomponents of other comprehensive income a®ptre statement of changes in
stockholders’ equity. This update requires thahah-owner changes in stockholdegguity be presented either in a single continutatesen
of comprehensive income or in two separate butexns/e statements. In the two-statement apprdheHirst statement should present total
net income and its components followed consecutibgla second statement that should present ttital somprehensive income, the
components of other comprehensive income, andtaedf comprehensive income. This update is effedor public companies for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, tr@gg after December 15, 2011. Early adoption renitted because compliance with 1
amendments is already permitted. Adoption of tipdate is not expected to have a material effectusnesults of operations or financial
condition.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-B4ijr Value Measurement (Topic 820) (“ASU 2011-0#ihich sets forth common fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements$oGHAP and International Financial Reporting StaddaASU No. 2011-04 is effective
for the first annual period beginning on or aftesdember 15, 2011. Adoption of this update is npeeted to have a material effect on our
results of operations or financial condition butyn@ave an effect on disclosures.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 20108%siness CombinationgTopic 805)(“ASU 2010-29"), to improve consistency
in how the pro forma disclosures are calculateddi#@hally, ASU 201029 enhances the disclosure requirements and recéseription of th
nature and amount of any material, nonrecurringfpnma adjustments directly attributable to a basgicombination. The guidance will
become effective for us with the reporting periegjinning October 1, 2011, and should be appliedg®ctively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is after the effectiated Early adoption is permitted. Other than réggidisclosures for prospective business
combinations, the adoption of this guidance isexgected to have a material effect on our restiltgerations or financial condition but may
have an effect on disclosures.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010Fa4, Value Measurements and Disclosureghich amends the authoritative
accounting guidance under ASC Topic 820, “Fair ddWleasurements and Disclosures.” The update regoin@panies to:

a. Separately disclose the amounts of significamisfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 faimeameasurements and describe
reasons for the transfers; and

b. Information about purchases, sales, issuanaksettiements need to be disclosed separatelgirettonciliation for fair value
measurements using Level 3.

The update also provides for amendments to exislisjosures as follows:
a. Fair value measurement disclosures are to be foagach class of assets and liabilities; and

b. Disclosures about valuation techniques and pséd to measure fair value for both recurringresrtecurring fair value
measurements. The update also includes confornmirggndments to guidance on employers’ disclosurestgimstretirement benefit plan
assets.

The update is effective for interim and annual répg periods beginning after December 15, 2008epkfor the disclosures about
purchases, sales, issuances and settlementsrolltfarward of activity in Level 3 fair value meaements. Those disclosures are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010,fanthterim periods within those fiscal years. Td@option in fiscal year 2011 did not hav
material effect and future adoption is not expetteldave a material effect on our results of openator financial condition.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17, $0bdations (Topic 810) — Improvements to Finan&aborting by Enterprises
Involved with Variable Interest Entities.” ASU 20Q9 generally represents a revision to former FASBrpretation No. 46 (Revised
December 2003), “Consolidation of Variable Interestities”, and changes how a reporting entity debees when an entity that is
insufficiently capitalized or is not
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controlled through voting (or similar rights) shdude consolidated. ASU 2009-17 also requires artiegoentity to provide additional
disclosures about its involvement with variableiest entities and any significant changes ineigkosure due to that involvement. ASU 2009-
17 is effective for fiscal years beginning afterddmber 15, 2009 and for interim periods within fingt annual reporting period. We adopted
ASU 2009-17 as of October 1, 2010, which did nateha significant effect on its financial statements

Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a materigdast on our results of operations for the yearedr&eptember 30, 2011, 2010 and
20009.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

We are exposed to various types of market riskértormal course of business, including the impé&gtterest rate changes and changes
in corporate tax rates. A material change in thiages could adversely affect our operating resuitscash flows. At September 30, 2011, our
Receivables Financing Agreement, all of which isakzle rate debt, had an outstanding balance of6fnillion. A 25 basis-point increase in
interest rates would have increased our annuakstexpense by approximately $200,000 based cavdrage debt obligation outstanding
during the fiscal year. We do not currently inviestlerivative, financial or commodity instruments.

Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Da

The Financial Statements of the Company, the Nb&®to and the Report of Independent RegisterbtidPAiccounting Firms thereon
required by this item begin on page F-1 of thioorecated immediately after the signature page.

ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéegnting and Financial Disclosure
None

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the our disate controls and procedures (as defined in Exgghact Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e)) as of the end of the period ended Septemhe2® was carried out by us under the supervarmhwith the participation of our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer. Basgpon that evaluation, our chief executive offiaed chief financial officer concluded that as
of September 30, 2011, our disclosure controlspandedures were effective to ensure (i) that inftion we are required to disclose in reports
that we file or submit under the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarizddeported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (iif $ach information is accumulated and communic&dedanagement, including our president,
in order to allow timely decisions regarding requidisclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Exchange Act). Under the supernisiod with the participation of our managementuding its principal executive officer ai
principal financial officer, we conducted an assemst of the effectiveness of its internal contregofinancial reporting. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth by timen@ttee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (“COSO”) in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework. Based on managemassessment, and based on the criteria of theOQC@8 believe that, as of
September 30, 2011, our internal control over faiareporting is effective at the reasonable aaste level.
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Our internal control system was designed to providesonable assurance regarding the reliabilifinahcial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples in the U.S. Our internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of
assets;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyeptad in the U.S., and that our receipts and experd are being made only in
accordance with authorization of our managementdimregtors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prtsweior timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on thedlmlated financial statements.

Our independent registered public accounting fi@@rgnt Thornton LLP, audited our internal controepfinancial reporting as of
September 30, 2011 and their report dated Decefifhet011 expresses an unqualified opinion on dermal control over financial reporting
and is included in this Item 9A.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporthg

There have not been any changes in our internatalsrover financial reporting (as defined in Exeba Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f)) that occurred during our fourth fiscal quartieat have materially affected, or are reasonakéhi to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaftles “Company”) internal control over financiadporting as of September 30, 2011,
based on criteria establishedliiiernal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageimeasponsible for maintaining effective interoahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanying Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporti@gir responsibility is to express an opinion aa @ompany’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@d@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetiefenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagi€ithin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiar&gntained, in all material respects, effectiveiinal control over financial reporting
of September 30, 2011, based on criteria estaldishiaternal Control-Integrated Framewoliksued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Asta Funding, imt sabsidiaries as of September 30, 2011 and 2@d.¢ha related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensieeme, and cash flows for each of the three yigattse period ended September 30, 2011,
and our report dated December 14, 2011, expressadcualified opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
New York, New York
December 14, 2011
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Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenee.

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respcbur 2012 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysré8eptember 30, 2011 and is incorporated hesethib reference.
ltem 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with resperbur 2012 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysre&8eptember 30, 2011 and is incorporated hesethib reference.
ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners attanagement and Related Stockholder Matte

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respcbur 2012 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysre&8eptember 30, 2011 and is incorporated hesethib reference.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respcbur 2012 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysré8eptember 30, 2011 and is incorporated hesethib reference.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respgrbur 2012 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysreé8eptember 30, 2011 and is incorporated hesethib reference.

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(a) The following documents are filed as part a$ tieport
Exhibit
Number
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation(1
3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation|
3.3 By-laws(2)
10.1 Asta Funding, Inc 1995 Stock Option Plan as Amef(itle
10.2 Asta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan
10.3 Asta Funding, Inc. Equity Compensation Plar
104 Third Amended and Restated Loan and Security Ageseiated May 11, 2004, between the Company aadlIBiscoun

Bank of NY(4)

10.5 Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Ageaedated July 10, 2006, between the CompanysaadlIDiscount

Bank of NY(6)
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Exhibit
Number
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12
10.13

10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18

10.19
10.20

10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27

10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33

10.34
10.35

Receivables Finance Agreement dated March 2, 266vden the Company and the Bank of Montrez

Subservicing Agreement between the Company an8uhservicer dated March 2, 2007(

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 5,8X

Third Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restlatesh and Security Agreement dated March 30, 208&yden the
Company and Israel Discount Bank

Fourth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restadad and Security Agreement dated May 10, 200&yédxen the
Company and Israel Discount Bank(:

Fifth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Resthateth and Security Agreement dated June 27, 20@%eclea the Compar
and Israel Discount Bank(1

First Amendment to the Receivables Finance Agre¢chatied July 1, 2007 between the Company and BaMoatreal(12)
Sixth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restabedh and Security Agreement dated December 4, 28&Ween th
Company and Israel Discount Bank(:

Second Amendment to the Receivables Financing Ageeédated December 27, 2007(

Third Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agresindated May 19, 2008(1

Amended and Restated Servicing Agreement dated1da2008 between the Company and The Bank of Mal{ir&)
Subordinated Promissory Note between Asta Fundiiigand Asta Group, Inc. dated April 29, 2008(

Seventh Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restai@n Agreement, Dated February 20, 2009 betwseiCbmpany an
IDB(18)

Form of Amended and Restated Revolving Note betwesta Funding and IDB, as lending agent(

Fourth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agexe dated February 20, 2009 between the CompahBank of
Montreal(20)

Subordinated Guarantor Security Agreement dateduaep 20, 2009 to Bank of Montreal(2

Subordinated Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreemetetddgebruary 20, 2009(2

Subordinated Guarantor Security Agreement datedugep 20, 2009 to Asta Group, Inc.(z

Subordinated Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreemetetdd@ebruary 20, 2009 to Asta Group.(

Form of Intercreditor Agreement between Asta Fugdind IDB as lending agent(2

Amended and Restated Management Agreement, datddlasuary 16, 2009, between Palisades ColledtianC., and [*](26)
Amended and Restated Master Servicing Agreemetdddes of January 16, 2009, between PalisadesdaBiofieL.L.C., and [*
(27)

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Masteric&egvAgreement, dated as of September 16, 200ankdyamon
Palisades Collection, L.L.C., and [*], and [*](2

Consulting Services Agreement dated November 309 @tween Cameron E. Williams and the Company

Loan Agreement Between Asta Funding and Bank Lelatéd December 14, 2009(<

Indemnification agreement between Asta Funding@its Family Investors LLC(31

Fifth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreendated October 26, 2010 between the Companjdankl of Montreal
(32)

Omnibus Termination Agreement, by and among Padis@tquisition XVI, LLC, BMO Capital Markets Corgas collateral
agent, Asta Group, Incorporated, and each guarastdorth therein(3<

Lease agreement between the Company and ESL20Glated August 2, 2010(3.

Consulting Agreement between the Company and Akelb&d Company, Inc. dated as of June 15, 201.
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Exhibit

Number

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrar

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*

311 Certification of Registra’'s Chief Executive Officer, Gary Stern, pursuanBéztion 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002.*

31.2 Certification of Registrant’'s Chief Financial Offic Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 302 ef$larbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

32.1 Certification of the Registra’s Chief Executive Officer, Gary Stern, pursuanBextion 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of
2002.*

32.2 Certification of the Registra’s Chief Financial Officer, Robert J. Michel, purstito Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of
2002.*

* Filed herewitr

(1) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astadtng' s Registration Statement on Form-2 (File No. 3-97212).

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Astadinc’s Annual Report on Form -KSB for the year ended September 30, 1!

(3) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading' s Quarterly Report on Form -QSB for the three months ended March 31, 2

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢'s Current Report on Forn-K filed May 19, 2004

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed March 3, 2006

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed July 12, 2006

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the three months ended March 31, 2(

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed February 9, 2007

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadin¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2C

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Astadin¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2C

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2(

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadin¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2(

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed December 10, 200°

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Astadin¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2C

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Astadin¢ s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the three months ended March 31, 2(

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Astadin¢s Current Report on Forn-K filed May 1, 2008
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(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(31)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Astadin¢'s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Astimdiin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed December 4, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astimdiing’s Current Report on Forn-K filed December 18, 200!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to Astadin¢'s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astimdiin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed November 1, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astimdiin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed November 22, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astiadiin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 5, 2010
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Astadiing Inc’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 21, 2011
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Exchange Act, the Registrant caused tigisrtgo be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

By: /s/ Gary Stern
Gary Sterr
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: December 14, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange At réport has been signed below by the followiagspns on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary Ster Chairman of the Board, President, ¢ December 14, 201
Gary Sterr Chief Executive Officer
/s Robert J. Miche Chief Financial Office December 14, 201
Robert J. Michel Principal Financial Officer and

Accounting Officet

/s/  Arthur Sterr Chairman Emeritus and Direct December 14, 201
Arthur Stern

/s/ Herman Badillc Director December 14, 201
Herman Badillc

/s/ Edward Celan Director December 14, 201
Edward Celant

/s Harvey Leibowit. Director December 14, 201
Harvey Leibowitz

/s/ David Slackma Director December 14, 201
David Slackmar

/s/ Louis A. Piccolc Director December 14, 201
Louis A. Piccola
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiarfes‘€ompany”) as of
September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related ¢datmd statements of operations, stockholders'teguid comprehensive income, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeen8eptember 30, 2011. These consolidated finasteitdments are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these consolidated financiatstants based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaepferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of Asta
Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Septembe2@D1 and 2010, and the results of their operatmustheir cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2011 iforoity with accounting principles generally acaaghin the United States of Americ

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Asta
Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal controépfinancial reporting as of September 30, 201&ebHan criteria established internal
Control — Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (CO$@nd our report
dated December 14, 2011 expressed an unqualifieibop

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLF

New York, New York
December 14, 201
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments
Available-for-sale
Other
Restricted cas
Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation E&itrealizable value
Due from third party collection agencies and attys
Prepaid and income taxes receive
Furniture and equipment (net of accumulated degtieci of $3,316,000 in 2011 and $3,066,000 in 2
Deferred income taxe
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Liabilities
Non recourse del
Subordinated del— related part)
Other liabilities
Dividends payabli
Income taxes payab
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 5,@),3suec— none
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 30,000sb@es, issued and outstanding 14,639,456 sh
in 2011 and 14,600,423 shares in 2!
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incomephigtcome taxe:
Treasury stock (at cos
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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September 30,

2011

2010

$ 84,347,00  $ 75,301,00
13,515,00 —
9,060,00! 8,934,001
1,031,001 1,304,001
115,195,00 147,031,00
2,084,001 3,528,001
3,369,001 196,00(
563,00 338,00(
14,358,00 18,762,00
4,529,001 3,770,001
$248,051,00  $259,164,00
$ 71,604,00  $ 90,483,00
— 4,386,001
3,167,001 2,105,001
293,00 292,00
31,00 —
75,095,00 97,266,00
146,00( 146,00
74,793,00 72,717,00
98,377,00 89,026,00
(290,000) 9,00(
(70,000 —
172,956,00 161,898,00
$248,051,00  $259,164,00
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended September 30,

2011

2010

2009

Revenues:
Finance income, ni $42,610,00 $45,631,00 $ 70,156,00
Other income 557,00( 218,00( 199,00(
43,167,00 45,849,00 70,355,00
Expenses:
General and administrative expen 21,807,00 23,211,00 25,915,00
Interest expense (Related Pe— 2011, $86,000; 2010, $518,000; 2009, $515,( 3,016,001 4,368,001 8,452,00!
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired épridiation 721,00( 13,029,00 183,500,00
25,544,00 40,608,00 217,867,00
Income (loss) before income tax 17,623,00 5,241,00! (147,512,00)
Income tax expense (benel 7,102,001 2,112,00! (56,787,00)
Net income (loss $10,521,00 $ 3,129,00! $ (90,725,00)
Basic net income (loss) per shar $ 0.72 $ 0.22 $ (6.3€)
Diluted net income (loss) per shart $ 0.71 $ 0.22 $ (6.36)
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic 14,626,97 14,492,21 14,272,42
Diluted 14,827,60 14,534,98 14,272,42

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and020

Balance, September 30, 20C

Exercise of option

Restricted stock forfeite

Stock based compensation expe

Tax benefit arising from exercise of non-qualifi&dck options
and vesting of restricted sto

Dividends

Other comprehensive income (net of tax of $31,(

Net (loss)

Balance, September 30, 2009

Exercise of option

Stock based compensation expe

Tax benefit arising from exercise of non-qualifidck options
and vesting of Restricted sto

Dividends

Other comprehensive loss (net of tax of $6,(

Net income

Balance, September 30, 201

Exercise of option

Stock based compensation expe

Restricted stoc

Dividends

Other comprehensive loss (net of tax benefit of6f190)

Purchase of Treasury Sto

Net income

Balance, September 30, 2011

Comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

Net income (loss

Accumulated

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net o-foreign currency translatic
Other comprehensive loss net of-unrealized loss on marketable securi

Comprehensive income (los
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) inct

Common Stock Other
Additional Comprehensive Treasury
Paid-in Retained
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total
14,276,15 $143,00( $69,130,00 $178,925,00 $ (297,000 $ — $247,901,00
53¢ 1,00¢ 1,00¢
(4,339
984,00( 984,00(
74,00( 74,00(
(1,142,001 (1,142,001
343,00( 343,00(
(90,725,00) (90,725,00)
14,272,35 143,00( 70,189,00 87,058,00 46,00( — 157,436,00
328,06t 3,00( 867,00( 870,00(
1,189,001 1,189,001
472,00( 472,00(
(1,161,001 (1,161,001
(37,000 (37,000
3,129,00( 3,129,001
14,600,42 146,00( 72,717,00 89,026,00 9,00( — 161,898,00
6,26¢ 21,00( 21,00(
2,055,00! 2,055,001
32,76¢ —
(1,170,001 (1,170,001
(299,001) (299,001)
(70,000 (70,000
10,521,00 10,521,00
14,639,45 $146,00( $74,793,00 $ 98,377,00 $ (290,000  $(70,000)  $172,956,00
2011 2010 2009
$ 10,521,00 $ 3,129,001 $ (90,725,00)
(9,000 (37,000 343,00(
(290,001 — —
$ 10,222,00 $ 3,092,001 $ (90,382,00)
$ (290,000 $ 9,00(¢ $ 46,00(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30,

2011

2010

2009

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss $ 10,521,00 $ 3,129,001 $(90,725,00)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashideal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 262,00( 1,291,001 1,664,001
Deferred income taxe 4,611,00! 5,310,00! (8,505,001
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired éuridiation 721,00( 13,029,00 183,500,00
Stock based compensati 2,055,00! 1,189,001 984,00(
Changes in
Income taxes payable and receive (3,142,00i) 47,531,00 (54,042,00)
Due from third party collection agencies and attys 1,444,001 (955,000 2,497,001
Other asset (771,000 (1,683,000 (268,001)
Other liabilities 1,041,001 (98,000 (2,109,00)
Net cash provided by operating activit 16,742,00 68,743,00 32,996,00
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of consumer receivables acquired fordaiian (7,435,001 (7,989,001 (19,552,00)
Principal payments received from collection of agngr receivables acquired
for liquidation 38,360,00 54,211,00 71,936,00
Principal payments received from collections repnésd by sales of consun
receivables acquired for liquidatit 235,00( 2,076,00! 5,317,00!
Effect of foreign exchange on consumer receivadtegiired for liquidatior (45,000 (97,000 (450,001)
Purchase of availat-for-sale investment (14,000,00) — —
Net purchases of other investme (126,000 (8,934,001
Purchase of treasury sto (70,000 — —
Capital expenditure (475,000 (108,000 (187,000
Net cash provided by investing activiti 16,444,00 39,159,00 57,064,00
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock optir 21,00( 870,00( 1,00(¢
Tax benefit arising from exercise of r-qualified stock option — 472,00( 74,00(
Change in restricted ca 273,00( 826,00( 917,00(
Dividends paic (1,169,001 (1,155,001 (1,427,000
Repayments of debt, n (18,879,00) (32,139,00) (90,863,00)
(Repayments) advance under subordinated— related party (4,386,000 (3,860,001 —
Net cash used in financing activiti (24,140,00) (34,986,00) (91,298,00)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake 9,046,00! 72,916,00 (1,238,001
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 75,301,00 2,385,00! 3,623,00!
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye: $ 84,347,00 $ 75,301,00 $ 2,385,00
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for
Interest (Related Party: 20— $122,000; 201 $568,000; 200¢—
$472,000) $ 3,114,00 $ 4,542,00i $ 9,082,001
Income taxe: $ 5,647,000 $ 2,052,00i $ 5,887,00

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P OLICIES

[1] The Company:

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly ownsidnificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Cttded_LC, Palisades Acquisition XV
LLC (“Palisades XVI"), VATIV Recovery Solutions LLC'VATIV") and other subsidiaries, not all whollywmed, and not considered material
(the “Company”), is engaged in the business of lpasing, managing for its own account and servidisgressed consumer receivables,
including charged-off receivables, semi-performiageivables, performing receivables and investrirelitigation related receivables. The
primary charged-off receivables are accounts thaeteen written-off by the originators and mayehbgen previously serviced by collection
agencies. Semi-performing receivables are accaumtseby the debtor is currently making partialreegular monthly payments, but the
accounts may have been written-off by the origiratBerforming receivables are accounts wherebyebsor is making regular monthly
payments that may or may not have been delinquethii past. Distressed consumer receivables auntbesd debts of individuals to banks,
finance companies and other credit providers. gdgortion of the Company’s distressed consumegivables are, MasterCagd , Viga , and
other credit card accounts which were charged-pthle issuers for non-payment. The Company acqthesse portfolios at substantial
discounts from their face values. The discountdased on the characteristics (issuer, accountdgeor location and age of debt) of the
underlying accounts of each portfolio. Litigaticlated receivables are semi-performing investm&htreby the Company is assigned the
revenue stream from the proceeds received.

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generaflgepted in the United States
(“U.S. GAAP”) and industry practices.

[1A] Liquidity:

The Company'’s cash requirements have been andawtinue to be significant. In the past the Complaay depended upon external
financing to acquire consumer receivables, fundatpey expenses, interest and income taxes. Ifoaepk, dividends paid are also a significant
use of cash. As the Company’s revolving debt |leeslreased to zero in fiscal year 2010, the Comparydepended solely on operating cash
flow to fund the acquisition of portfolios, pay apéng expenses, dividends, and taxes. In June,20@@ompany received an aggregate tax
refund of approximately $52.7 million. As of Noveert80, 2011, the outstanding amount on the Balarftreal (“BMO”) facility
(“Receivables Financing Agreement”) that finandeel $6.9 billion in face value receivables for aghase price of $300 million, (th&brtfolio
Purchase”) is $70.0 million. The Company contiru@ay down the balance and the interest from tHleatimns of the receivables under the
Portfolio Purchase.

Net collections decreased $20.7 million or 20.386f1$101.9 million in fiscal year 2010 to $81.2 ioifi in fiscal year 2011. Although t
Company'’s collections decreased from the prior yémr Company believes its net cash collections theenext twelve months, coupled with
its current liquid cash balances, will be sufficiemcover its operating expenses, service debpagdnterest. See Note E — Non Recourse
Debt and Subordinated Debt — Related Party, fah&rrinformation.

[2] Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its wholly owned subsies. All significant

intercompany balances and transactions have baeim&ied in consolidation.
[3] Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:
The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith a maturity of three months or less at theedstpurchase to be cash equivale
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES — (C ONTINUED )
[3] Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:(Continued)

The Company maintains cash balances in varioussitepp institutions. Management periodically evaésathe creditworthiness of such
institutions. Cash balances exceed Federal Dejmssitance Corporation (“FDIC”) limits from time tine. Cash balances at September 30,
2011 were substantially in excess of these limits.

On February 5, 2007, Palisades Acquisition XV, LiaGyholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entén¢éol a Purchase and Sale
Agreement (the “Portfolio Purchase Agreement”),amdhich it agreed to acquire the Portfolio Purehfas a purchase price of $300 million.
To finance this purchase, now owned by Palisadek thi¢ Company entered into a Receivables Finankgrgement with BMO as the
funding source, consisting of debt with full receeiionly to Palisades XVI. As part of the Receivalfimmancing Agreement, all proceeds
received as a result of the net collections froeRloertfolio Purchase are to be applied to inteandtprincipal of the underlying loan until the
loan is fully paid.

The restricted cash at September 30, 2011 repsesash on hand, substantially all of which is desigd to be paid to the Company’s
lender subsequent to September 30, 2011. The I&ademandated in which depository institutionsgagh is to be maintained.

[4] Investments
Available-for-Sale

Investments that the Company intends to hold fandafinite period of time, but not necessarilymaturity, are classified as available-
for-sale and are carried at fair value. Unrealigaths and losses on available-for-sale securitiesl@termined using the specific-identification
method.

Declines in the fair value of individual availalft@-sale securities below their respective costs &ne other than temporary will result in
write-downs of the individual securities to theairfvalue. Factors affecting the determination dether an other-than-temporary impairment
has occurred include a downgrading of the secbyita rating agency, a significant deterioratiothia financial condition of the issuer, or that
management would not have the ability to hold aigcfor a period of time sufficient to allow fany anticipated recovery in fair value.

Other Investments
Other investments consist of certificates of detgosith maturities greater than three months atiéite of purchase.

[5] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjéeld adjustments:
Income Recognition

The Company accounts for its investment in consueeeivables acquired for liquidation using thefest method under the guidance of
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification (“ASC”) 310, Receivabi— Loans and Debt Securities
Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality, (“ASC@®). In ASC 310 static pools of accounts are esthbld. These pools are aggregated basec
on certain common risk criteria. Each static psakicorded at cost and is accounted for as a simgldor the recognition of income, principal
payments and loss provision.
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES — (C ONTINUED )
[5] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjéeld adjustments: — (Continued)

Once a static pool is established for a quartelividual receivable accounts are not added to tw @unless replaced by the seller) or
removed from the pool (unless sold or returnedhéoseller). ASC 310 requires that the excess of tiéractual cash flows over expected cash
flows not be recognized as an adjustment of revem@xpense or on the balance sheet. ASC 310linitiaezes the internal rate of return
(“IRR”), estimated when the accounts receivable are purdhasehe basis for subsequent impairment tesSiggificant increases in actual,
expected future cash flows are recognized prospdgtihrough an upward adjustment of the IRR ovposdfolio’s remaining life. Any increa
to the IRR then becomes the new benchmark for impait testing. Under ASC 310, rather than lowetirggestimated IRR if the collection
estimates are not received or projected to bevedethe carrying value of a pool would be writtlawn to maintain the then current IRR.

Finance income is recognized on cost recovery @iyt after the carrying value has been fully remred through collections or amounts
written down.

Impairments and accretable yield adjustments

The Company accounts for its impairments in acawedavith ASC 310, which provides guidance on howdoount for differences
between contractual and expected cash flows fromastor’s initial investment in loans or debtséties acquired in a transfer if those
differences are attributable, at least in partrélit quality. Increases in expected cash flovesracognized prospectively through an adjust
of the internal rate of return while decreasesxipeeted cash flows are recognized as impairmemtsmfpairment of approximately $0.7
million was recorded in the fiscal year ended Smpker 30, 2011. An impairment of approximately $118i0ion was recorded in the fiscal ye
ended September 30, 2010, all related to the Piorfairchase. As a result of the slower economyathdr factors that resulted in slower
collections on certain portfolios, impairments a88.5 million were recorded in fiscal year 2009wtfich $108.5 million related to the interest
method portfolios and $75.0 million related to cestovery method portfolios. Finance income isneabgnized on cost recovery method
portfolios until the cost of the portfolio is fullecovered. Collection projections are performedboth interest method and cost recovery
method portfolios. With regard to the cost recoveoytfolios, if collection projections indicate tharrying value will not be recovered, a write
down in value is required. There were no accretgigliel adjustments recorded in the fiscal yearsdrSleptember 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

The recognition of income under ASC 310 is depehdarthe Company having the ability to develop oeable expectations of both the
timing and amount of cash flows to be collectedhm event the Company cannot develop a reasonapkrtation as to both the timing and
amount of cash flows expected to be collected, R3C permits the change to the cost recovery methioel Company will recognize income
only after it has recovered its carrying value,0A$September 30, 2011, the carrying value of thef§l® Purchase was approximately
$78.3 million. There can be no assurance as to whérthe carrying value will be recovered.

The Company’s analysis of the timing and amourdash flows to be generated by its portfolio purelseand investments are based on
the following attributes:

» the type of receivable, the location of the delatwd the number of collection agencies previoudgnapting to collect the receivables
in the portfolio. The Company has found that themeebetter states to try to collect receivablesthadCompany factors in both better
and worse states when establishing their initiahdéow expectation:

 the average balance of the receivables influerree€bmpan’s analysis in that lower average balance portfaéos to be mor
collectible in the sho-term and higher average balance portfolios are |

F-9



Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES — (C ONTINUED )
[5] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjéeld adjustments: — (Continued)

appropriate for the Compa’s lawsuit strategy and thus yield better resuler dhie longer term. As the Company has signifi
experience with both types of balances, it is #&bl@ctor these variables into its initial expectagh flows

» the age of the receivables, the number of day®siharg-off, any payments since cha-off, and the credit guidelines of the cre
originator also represent factors taken into carsition in the Company’s estimation process . kanwle, older receivables might be
more difficult and/or require more time and efftortcollect;

» past history and performance of similar assetsiaediuAs the Company purchases portfolios of likseds, it accumulates a significi
historical data base on the tendencies of debpayraents and factor this into its initial expectagh flows:

» the Compan's ability to analyze accounts and resell accourasmeet its criterie

 jobs or property of the debtors found within politie. With the Compar’s business model, this is of particular importamebtors
with jobs or property are more likely to repay thabligation through the lawsuit strategy and, @msely, debtors without jobs or
property are less likely to repay their obligatidine Company believes that debtors with jobs operty are more likely to repay
because courts have mandated the debtor must paleti. Ultimately, the debtor with property wilypto clear title or release a lien.
The Company also believes that these debtors gbneright take longer to repay and that is factoir@d its initial expected cash
flows; and

» credit standards of issut

The Company acquires accounts that have experiatetedoration of credit quality between originatiand the date of its acquisition of
the accounts. The amount invested in a portfoliaaaunts reflects the Company’s determinationithiatprobable the Company will be
unable to collect all amounts due according topiwefolio of accounts’ contractual terms. The Compaonsiders the expected payments and
estimates the amount and timing of undiscountee&bepl principal, interest and other cash flowsefach acquired portfolio coupled with
expected cash flows from accounts available far.SEhe excess of this amount over the cost of ¢iégbio, representing the excess of the
accounts’ cash flows expected to be collected theeemount paid, is accreted into income recognizefinance receivables accounted for on
the interest method over the expected remainiegolifthe portfolio.

The Company believes it has significant experienaequiring certain distressed consumer receivpbittolios at a significant discount
to the amount actually owed by underlying debtdree Company invests in these portfolios only dfi@h qualitative and quantitative analy
of the underlying receivables are performed andleutated purchase price is paid so that it befieteeestimated cash flow offers an adequate
return on acquisition costs after servicing expsnéeditionally, when considering larger portfoparchases of accounts, or portfolios from
issuers with whom the Company has limited expegeiidas the added benefit of soliciting its thpatty collection agencies and attorneys for
their input on liquidation rates and, at timesoiqorates such input into the estimates it usegs@xpected cash flows.

As a result of the challenging economic environnaert the impact it has had on collections, forfptict purchases acquired in fiscal
year 2011, the Compa’s expectation of recovering 100% of its investagital is a 24 -39 month period, with the expeotatf recovering
130-140% over 7 years. The 2011 time frame of egtiens have remained unchanged from fiscal ye&620he Company routinely monitors
these expectations against the actual cash flodisimthe event the cash flows are below expectatand the Company believes
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010
N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oOLICIES — (C ONTINUED )

[5] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjéeld adjustments: — (Continued)

there are no reasons relating to mere timing diffees or explainable delays (such as can occucuylarty when the court system is involved)
for the reduced collections, an impairment is rdedron portfolios accounted for on the interesthmet Conversely, in the event the cash fl
are in excess of its expectations and the reasdueigo timing, the Company would defer the “extes#iection as deferred revenue.

[6] Commissions and fees:

Commissions and fees are the contractual commisgsiamed by third party collection agencies armtagtys, and direct costs associated
with the collection effort- generally court costhe Company expects to continue to purchase pmtfaind utilize third party collection
agencies and attorney networks.

[7] Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost. Deptienigs provided using the straight-line method o estimated useful lives of the
assets (5 to 7 years). Amortization on leasehofgt@vements is provided by the straight line-metbbthe remaining life of the respective
lease. An accelerated depreciation method is wmetdxX purposes.

[8] Income taxes:

Deferred federal and state taxes arise from (pgeition of finance income collected for tax purpssbut not yet recognized for financial
reporting; (ii) provision for impairments/creditdees, all resulting in timing differences betweiearicial accounting and tax reporting, and
(iii) amortization of leasehold improvements remgtin timing differences between financial accaogtand tax reporting.

[9] Net income (loss) per share:

Basic per share data is determined by dividingmeime by the weighted average shares outstandinggithe period. Diluted per share
data is computed by dividing net income by the \wiig average shares outstanding, assuming alivdilpbtential common shares were
issued. The assumed proceeds from the exercigeitfe options are calculated using the treastiwgls method based on the average market
price for the period.

The following table presents the computation ofibaad diluted per share data for the years enégtefber 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
Weighted Per Weighted Per Weighted Per
Net Average Share Net Average Share Net Average Share
Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount
Basic $10,521,000 14,626,97 $ 0.7z $3,129,000 14,492,21 $ 0.2z $(90,725,00) 14,272,42 $(6.3€)
Dilutive effect of stock
Options 200,63' (0.0 42,767 — — —
Diluted $10,521,000 14,827,60 $0.71 $3,129,000 14,534,98 $ 0.2z $(90,725,00) 14,272,42 $(6.3€)

At September 30, 2011, 986,732 options at a weibaterage exercise price of $13.18 were not incud¢he diluted earnings per share
calculation as they were anti-dilutive. At SeptemB@, 2010, 680,795 options at a
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2011 and 2010

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES — (C ONTINUED )
[9] Net income (loss) per share: — (Continued)

weighted average exercise price of $15.59 werénotided in the diluted earnings per share calmnads they were anti-dilutive. At
September 30, 2009, 133,250 options at a weightehge exercise price of $8.30 were not includetiéndiluted earnings per share
calculation as they were anti-dilutive.

[10] Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasihiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finarstialements and the reported amounts of revenuksxg@enses during the reporting period. With
respect to income recognition under the intereshotk the Company takes into consideration theivel@redit quality of the underlying
receivables constituting the portfolio acquired #trategy involved to maximize the collectiong¢oé, the time required to implement the
collection strategy as well as other factors tineste the anticipated cash flows. Actual resulisiddiffer from those estimates including
management’s estimates of future cash flows andethdtant allocation of collections between priatiand interest resulting therefrom.
Downward revisions to estimated cash flows willuleg impairments.

[11] Stock-based compensation:

The Company accounts for stock-based employee aosagien under FASB ASC 718, Compensation — Stoak@msation, (“ASC
718"). ASC 718 requires that compensation expessediated with stock options and vesting of retstock awards be recognized in the
statement of operations.

[12] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2011, the FASB issued Accounting StatsdUpdate (“ASU”) No. 2011-0&tangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic
350), which amends and simplify the rules related sbing goodwill for impairment. The revised guidardiews an entity to make an initial
qualitative evaluation, based on the entity’s esemtd circumstances, to determine whether it ieerikely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amounte Tésults of this qualitative assessment determmether it is necessary to perform the
currently required twastep impairment test. The new guidance is effedbvennual and interim goodwill impairment tesesfprmed for fisca
years beginning after December 15, 2011. As allolseASU 201-08, the Company early adopted this guidance $dfistal year 2011
goodwill impairment test.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011@&mnprehensive Income (Topic 22 order to improve the comparability, consiste
and transparency of financial reporting and toeéase the prominence of items reported in other celn@msive income. This standard
eliminates the option to present components ofratbmprehensive income as part of the statemechariges in stockholders’ equity. This
update requires that all non-owner changes in smders’equity be presented either in a single continutatesient of comprehensive inco
or in two separate but consecutive statementfidiwo-statement approach, the first statementldhprasent total net income and its
components followed consecutively by a second rstaite that should present total other compreheriso@ne, the components of other
comprehensive income, and the total of compreherisrome. This update is effective for public comipa for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning after Decamibe2011. Early adoption is permitted becausept@mce with the amendments is already
permitted. Adoption of this update is not expedtetiave a material effect on the Company’s resfltgperations or financial condition.
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[12] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards- (Continued)

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-B4jr Value Measurement (Topic 820\hich results in common fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for US GawPInternational Financial Reporting StandardSUANo. 2011-04 is effective for the
first annual period beginning on or after Deceniti&r2011. Adoption of this update is not expectelldve a material effect on the Company’s
results of operations or financial condition butyn@ve an effect on disclosures.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010B2@jness Combinations (Topic 80%) improve consistency in how the pro foi
disclosures are calculated. Additionally, ASU 2@®enhances the disclosure requirements and reqigseription of the nature and amount
of any material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustmaetitsctly attributable to a business combinatiolme Guidance will become effective for the
Company with the reporting period beginning Octobe2011, and should be applied prospectively srmss combinations for which the
acquisition date is after the effective date. Eadpption is permitted. Other than requiring disales for prospective business combinations,
the adoption of this update is not expected to tzaviempact on the Company’s consolidated finarstatiements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-Gtclwamends the authoritative accounting guidamekeuASC Topic 820, “Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures.” The updat@nesjthe following additional disclosures:

a. Separately disclose the amounts of signifigamisfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 faimeatneasurements and describe
reasons for the transfers;

b. Information about purchases, sales, issuanaksettiements need to be disclosed separatelyirettonciliation for fair value
measurements using Level 3.

The update provides for amendments to existingalisces as follows:
a. Fair value measurement disclosures are to be foagach class of assets and liabilities;

b. Disclosures about valuation techniques and spséd to measure fair value for both recurringrasrttecurring fair value
measurements. The update also includes conformmigmdments to guidance on employers’ disclosurestglistretirement benefit plan
assets.

The update is effective for interim and annual répg periods beginning after December 15, 2008epkfor the disclosures about
purchases, sales, issuances and settlementsrolitf@ward of activity in Level 3 fair value measments. Those disclosures are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010,fanthterim periods within those fiscal years. Td@option in fiscal year 2011 did not hav
material effect and future adoption is not expettedave a material effect on the Company’s regfltperations or financial condition.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009dahsolidations (Topic 81Q)which represents a revision to former FASB
Interpretation No. 46 (Revised December 2003), ‘€idation of Variable Interest Entities”, and chaa how a reporting entity determines
when an entity that is insufficiently capitalizedis not controlled through voting (or similar righ should be consolidated. ASU 2009-17 also
requires a reporting entity to provide additionalctbsures about its involvement with variable iat entities and any significant changes in
risk exposure due to that involvement. ASU 2009s1&ffective for fiscal years beginning after Nowmmn 15, 2009 and for interim periods
within the first annual reporting period. The Compadopted ASU 20027 as of October 1, 2010, which did not have aifiggmt effect on it
financial statements.
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[13] Reclassifications:
Certain items in prior years' financial statememse been reclassified to conform to the curreat’ggresentation.

N OoTE B — | NVESTMENTS
Available-for-Sale
Investments classified as available-for-sale ate&8aper 30, 2011 consist of the following:

Unrealized
Amortized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Mutual Funds $14,000,00 $ — $(485,00() $13,515,00

The available-for-sale investments did not have @mntractual maturities. There were no sales duigogl year 2011. There were no
available-for-sales investments at September 300.20

At September 30, 2011, there were four investmieras unrealized loss position, all of which hadrent unrealized losses which had
existed for 12 months or less. Based on the evialuaf the available evidence, including recentrges in market rates and credit rating
information, management believes the decline inviaiue for these instruments is temporary. In toldj management has the ability but does
not believe it will be required to sell these inweant securities for a period of time sufficienedow for an anticipated recovery or maturity.
Should the impairment of any of these securitieob®e other than temporary, the cost basis of thestment will be reduced and the resulting
loss recognized in net income in the period in Whtee other-than-temporary impairment is identified

Other Investments
Other investments consist of the following:

September 3C September 3C
2011 2010
Certificates of deposits in ban $9,060,00! $8,934,00!

Certificates are generally nonnegotiable and nosfeaable, and may incur substantial penaltiesvithrdrawal prior to maturity, which
will be within one year. Of the amounts shown ahdke following amounts are classified as brokeredificates of deposits:

2011 2010
Brokered certificates of deposits $1,483,00! $3,925,00!

Brokered certificates of deposit are subject tokefluctuations if sold prior to maturity; howeydris the Company’s intention to hold
all certificates of deposit to maturity. All of theokered securities referenced above are FDICQ@asu

N oTeE C — C ONSUMER R ECEIVABLES A CQUIRED F OR L IQUIDATION

Accounts acquired for liquidation are stated airthet estimated realizable value and consist milgnaf defaulted consumer loans to
individuals throughout the country and in Centrahe¥ica.
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The Company accounts for its investments in consueateivable portfolios, using either:
+ the interest method,; «
 the cost recovery methao

The Company accounts for its investment in finareoeivables using the interest method under thgaguaie of ASC 310. Under the
guidance of ASC 310, static pools of accounts atabdished and these pools are aggregated basstain common risk criteria. Each static
pool is recorded at cost and is accounted forsasgle unit for the recognition of income, prindipayments and loss provision.

Once a static pool is established for a quarteliyidual receivable accounts are not added to twot funless replaced by the seller) or
removed from the pool (unless sold or returnedhéoseller). ASC310 requires that the excess ofdn¢ractual cash flows over expected cash
flows not be recognized as an adjustment of revem@xpense or on the balance sheet. ASC310 Iyifiglezes the internal rate of return,
referred to as IRR, estimated when the accounvaole are purchased, as the basis for subsemmpairment testing. Significant increase:
actual or expected future cash flows may be re@aghprospectively through an upward adjustment@fiRR over a portfoli® remaining life
Any increase to the IRR then becomes the new beadhfar impairment testing. Rather than lowering #stimated IRR if the collection
estimates are not received or projected to bevedethe carrying value of a pool would be impajm@dwritten down to maintain the then
current IRR. Under the interest method, income@®gnized on the effective yield method based eratitiual cash collected during a period
and future estimated cash flows and timing of stalkections and the portfolio’s cost. Revenue agsrom collections in excess of anticipated
amounts attributable to timing differences is defdmuntil such time as a review results in a chandgke expected cash flows. The estimated
future cash flows are reevaluated quarterly.

The Company uses the cost recovery method wheectiolhs on a particular pool of accounts cannaelsonably predicted. Under the
cost recovery method, no income is recognized timdilcost of the portfolio has been fully recovergool can become fully amortized (zero
carrying balance on the balance sheet) whileggitierating cash collections. In this case, all cadllections are recognized as revenue when
received.

The Company’s extensive liquidating experiencaighe field of distressed credit card receivalielecommunication receivables,
consumer loan receivables, retail installment @mtfy, consumer receivables, and auto deficien@ivalisles. The Company uses the interest
method for accounting for asset acquisitions withigse classes of receivables when it believemnireasonably estimate the timing of the cash
flows. In those situations where the Company difiessits acquisitions into other asset classesreskiee Company does not possess the same
expertise or history, or the Company cannot redslgrestimate the timing of the cash flows; the Camyputilizes the cost recovery method of
accounting for those portfolios of receivables S&jptember 30, 2011, approximately $31.2 milliothef consumer receivables acquired for
liguidation are accounted for using the interesthoe, while approximately $84.0 million are accahfor using the cost recovery method, of
which $78.3 million is concentrated in one portiolihe Portfolio Purchase.

The Company aggregates portfolios of receivablgsiaed sharing specific common characteristics Wiwvere acquired within a given
qguarter. The Company currently considers for agafieg portfolios of accounts, purchased within shene fiscal quarter, that generally meet
the following characteristics:

» same issuer/originato
» same underlying credit qualit
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 similar geographic distribution of the accout
» similar age of the receivable; a
» same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuation, etc.

The Company uses a variety of qualitative and dtadive factors to estimate collections and thdnirthereof. This analysis includes-
following variables:

» the number of collection agencies previously attiéimgpto collect the receivables in the portfol

» the average balance of the receivables, as higilentes might be more difficult to collect whileMdalances might not be cc
effective to collect

» the age of the receivables, as older receivablghtrbie more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective. On the other hand, the
passage of time, in certain circumstances, mightltén higher collections due to changing life etgeof some individual debtor

 past history of performance of similar ass

 time since charc-off;

» payments made since che-off;

« the credit originator and its credit guidelin

» the Compan’s ability to analyze accounts and resell accourasrheet the Compa’s criteria for resale

+ the locations of the debtors, as there are batigrssto attempt to collect in and ultimately tren@®any has better predictability of t
liguidations and the expected cash flows. Convegrdleére are also states where the liquidatiorsrate not as favorable and that is
factored into the Compa’s cash flow analysit

* jobs or property of the debtors found within padlitie. In the Compar’s business model, this is of particular importamebtors with
jobs or property are more likely to repay theirigation and conversely, debtors without jobs ompeirty are less likely to repay thi
obligation; anc

« the ability to obtain timely customer statementsrfrthe original issue

The Company obtains and utilizes, as appropriapiti including but not limited to monthly colleati projections and liquidation rates,
from third party collection agencies and attornegsfurther evidentiary matter, to assist in evithggand developing collection strategies and
in evaluating and modeling the expected cash flimwva given portfolio.
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The following tables summarize the changes in @ilarite sheet of the investment in receivable pa#auring the following periods.

(1) Includes $34.3 million derived from fully amortizedols.

For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

F-17

Interest Cost
Method Recovery
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of peric $ 46,348,00 $100,683,00 $147,031,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolios, n 6,620,00! 815,00( 7,435,00!
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidatior (61,247,00) (19,568,00) (80,815,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sél
consumer receivables acquired for liquidal (390,000 — (390,000
Impairments (49,000 (672,000 (721,000
Effect of foreign currency translatic — 45,00( 45,00(
Finance income recognized( 39,911,00 2,699,00! 42,610,00
Balance, end of peric $ 31,193,00 $ 84,002,00 $115,195,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 64.8% 13.8% 52.5%
(1) Includes $34.3 million derived from fully amortizedols.
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010
Interest Cost
Method Recovery
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of peric $ 70,650,00 $137,611,00 $208,261,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolios, n 7,698,00! 291,00 7,989,00!
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidation(1 (72,398,00) (26,036,00) (98,434,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sél
consumer receivables acquired for liquidal (3,481,001 (4,000 (3,485,001
Impairments — (23,029,00) (13,029,00)
Effect of foreign currency translatic — 97,00( 97,00(
Finance income recognized( 43,879,00 1,753,00! 45,632,00
Balance, end of peric $ 46,348,00 $100,683,00 $147,031,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 57.8% 6.7% 44.8%
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As of September 30, 201, the Company had $115,005r0consumer receivables acquired for liquidatimrwhich $31,193,000 are
accounted for on the interest method. Based upmemiprojections, net cash collections, appliegdrincipal for interest method portfolios are
estimated as follows for the twelve months in teequs ending:

September 30, 201 $18,059,00
September 30, 201 8,344,00!
September 30, 201 3,705,00!
September 30, 201 749,00(
September 30, 201 620,00(
September 30, 201 30,00(

31,507,00
Deferred revenu (314,000
Total $31,193,00

Accretable yield represents the amount of incomreeGbmpany can expect to generate over the remaamiagtizable life of its existing
portfolios based on estimated future net cash flasvef September 30, 2011. The Company adjus&citretable yield upward when it
believes, based on available evidence, that partéalllections will exceed amounts previously estied. Projected accretable yield for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2011 and 201&sdm@lows:

Year Ended
September 30,
2011
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2010 $ 15,255,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (39,911,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from piges 1,824,001
Reclassifications from n«-accretable difference(: 30,305,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, 2 $ 7,473,00
Year Ended
September 30,
2010
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2009 $ 25,875,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (43,208,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from piges 2,424,00!
Reclassifications from n«-accretable difference( 30,164,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, Z $ 15,255,00

(1) Includes portfolios that became zero based poosdliuring the period, removal of zero basis pddfofrom the accretable yield calculat
and, other immaterial impairments and accretiosgeta@n the certain collection curves being exten
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During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Cayripaested $7.5 million in receivables totaling®$ million in face value. During
the year ended September 30, 2010, the Compangted/approximately $8.0 million in receivables liog$269 million in face value. The
estimated remaining net collections on the recdéesapurchased and classified under the interestadgt$6.6 million) during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2011, are $7.1 million.

The following table summarizes collections on asgrbasis as received by the Company'’s third-paitgation agencies and attorneys,
less commissions and direct costs for the yearseeBeptember 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

For the Years Ended, September 30,

2011 2010 2009
Gross collections(1 $129,688,00 $157,574,00 $224,528,00
Commissions and fees( 48,483,00 55,654,00 77,119,00
Net collections $ 81,205,00 $101,920,00 $147,409,00

(1) Gross collections include: collections fronrdhparty collection agencies and attorneys, cdbestfrom in-house efforts and collections
represented by account sal

(2) Commissions and fees are the contractual cosioms earned by third party collection agenciesattatneys, and direct costs associated
with the collection effort- generally court costhe Company expects to continue to purchase pmsfahd utilize third party collection
agencies and attorney networ

Finance income recognized on net collections remtesl by account sales was $0.2 million, $1.2 amlind $3.1 million for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 200@ctasyly.
N oTE D — F URNITURE AND E QUIPMENT

Furniture and equipment as of September 30, 20d 2@mh0 consist of the following:

2011 2010
Furniture $ 310,00( $ 310,00(
Equipment 3,290,00! 2,855,00!
Software 180,00 153,00(
Leasehold improvemen 99,00( 86,00(

3,879,001 3,404,001
Less accumulated depreciati 3,316,00! 3,066,00!
Balance, end of peric $ 563,00( $ 338,00(

Depreciation expense for the years ended SepteB@h@011, 2010 and 2009 aggregated $250,000, $308&d $411,000, respectively.
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Receivables Financing Agreement

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima®&27 million under the Receivables Financing Agrest, as amended in July
2007, December 2007, May 2008 and February 2068y BMO, in order to finance the Portfolio Purchabee Portfolio Purchase had a
purchase price of $300 million (plus 20% of netmpants after Palisades XVI recovers 150% of its pase price plus cost of funds, which
recovery has not yet occurred). Prior to the modtfon, discussed below, the debt was full recoardg to Palisades XVI and bore an interest
rate of approximately 170 basis points over LIBORe original term of the agreement was three y&drs. term was extended by each of the
Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Amendments to teedi/ables Financing Agreement as discussed bdlogvReceivables Financing
Agreement contained cross default provisions rdledehe IDB Credit Facility. This cross defaultudt only occur in the event of a non-
payment in excess of $2.5 million of the IDB Creflitcility. Proceeds received as a result of thecai¢ctions from the Portfolio Purchase are
applied to interest and principal of the underlyiogn. The Portfolio Purchase is serviced by PdésaCollection LLC, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which has engaged Uil subservicers for a majority of the Portfdiorchase.

Since the inception of the Receivables FinancingeAment amendments have been signed to revisaigddoms of the Receivables
Financing Agreement. Currently, the Fifth Amendmierit effect.

On October 26, 2010, Palisades XVI entered intdrifth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreet (the “Fifth Amendmen}’
The effective date of the Fifth Amendment was Oetdbd, 2010. The Fifth Amendment (i) extends thgiraxion date of the Receivables
Financing Agreement to April 30, 2014, (ii) redut¢les minimum monthly total payment to $750,000) éccelerates the Company’s guarantee
credit enhancement of $8,700,000, which was pa@hgxecution of the Fifth Amendment, (iv) elimirmthe Company’s limited guarantee of
repayment of the loans outstanding by Palisades &M (v) revises the definition of “Borrowing BaBeficit”, as defined in the Receivables
Financing Agreement, to mean the excess, if angp6#6 of the loans outstanding over the borrowiageb

In connection with the Fifth Amendment, on OctoBér 2010, the Company entered into the Omnibus iFetion Agreement (the
“Termination Agreement”). The limited recourse suinated guaranty discussed under the Fourth Amentrwas eliminated upon signing
the Termination Agreement.

The aggregate minimum repayment obligations requireler the Fifth Amendment, including interest aridcipal, for each of the fisc
years ending September 30, 2012 and 2013 is $®mahnually, and, for the fiscal year ended Sep®m30, 2014, is approximately $5:
million.

On September 30, 2011 and 2010, the outstandimg&alon this loan was approximately $71.6 millemg $90.5 million, respectively.
The applicable interest rate at September 30, 20812010 was 3.72% and 3.76%, respectively. Theagednterest rate of the Receivable
Financing Agreement was 3.75% and 3.77% for thesyeaded September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Other significant amendments to the Receivablearitimg Agreement are as follows:

Second Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreerdated December 27, 2007 revised the amortizatibadule of the loan from
25 months to approximately 31 months. BMO chargalis®des XVI a fee of $475,000 which was paid aruday 10, 2008. The fee was
capitalized and is being amortized over the remaitife of the Receivables Financing Agreement.
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Third Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreemasited May 19, 2008 extended the payments of thetlm@ugh December 2010.
The lender also increased the interest rate frobnbbais points over LIBOR to approximately 320 baiints over LIBOR, subject to
automatic reduction in the future if additional tapcontributions are made by the parent of PdksaXVI.

Fourth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendaied February 20, 2009, among other thingsp\iieted the collection rate
minimum to $1 million per month (plus interest grds) as an average for each period of three catigeenonths, (ii) provided for an
automatic extension of the maturity date from Apfll 2011 to April 30, 2012 should the outstandiatance be reduced to $25 million or less
by April 30, 2011 and (iii) permanently waived thevious termination events. The interest rate mesnanchanged at approximately 320 basis
points over LIBOR, subject to automatic reductioriiie future should certain collection milestonesatiained.

As additional credit support for repayment by Raliss XVI of its obligations under the Receivablemkcing Agreement and as an
inducement for BMO to enter into the Fourth Amendimée Company provided BMO a limited recourséosdinated guaranty, secured by
the assets of the Company, in an amount not toeex$8.0 million plus reasonable costs of enforcaraad collection. Under the terms of the
guaranty, BMO cannot exercise any recourse agdiestompany until the earlier of (i) five yearsrfréhe date of the Fourth Amendment and
(i) the termination of the Company’s existing samriending facility or any successor senior fagilit

The Company’s average debt obligation (excludirgsibordinated debt — related party) for the figears ended September 30, 2011
and 2010, was approximately $77.2 million and $98ilion, respectively. The average interest rats8.75% and 3.81%, respectively, for
years ended September 30, 2011 and 2

Bank Leumi Credit Agreement

On December 14, 2009 Asta Funding, Inc. and itsiglidries other than Palisades XVI, entered inéoBank Leumi Credit Agreement
which permits maximum principal advances of up@mdllion. The term of the agreement was througleddeber 31, 2010. The interest rate
was a floating rate equal to the Bank Leumi RefeeeRate plus 2%, with a floor of 4.5%. The loan w@sured by collateral consisting of al
the assets of the Company other than those ofdélaésXVI. In addition, other collateral for the toeonsisted of a pledge by GMS Family
Investors, LLC, and an investment company ownethbynbers of the Stern family in the form of cash securities with a value of 133% of
the loan commitment. There were no financial comemnestrictions for the Bank Leumi Credit Agreemedh December 14, 2009,
approximately $3.6 million of the Bank Leumi crelilite was used to reduce to zero the remainingiealaf the IDB Credit Facility described
below. The Bank Leumi Credit Agreement balance redsiced to zero in January 2010. The Company igingmith its bank on a new credit
facility with a larger credit limit.

IDB Credit Facility

The Eighth Amendment to the IDB Credit Facility emed into on July 10, 2009, granted an initial $#lion line of credit from a
consortium of banks (“The Bank Group”) for portfolurchases and working capital and was schedalezbuce to zero by December 31,
2009. The IDB Credit Facility bore interest at theser of LIBOR plus an applicable margin, or thienp rate minus an applicable margin bz
on certain leverage ratios, with a minimum rat®.826. The IDB Credit Facility was collateralized &y assets of the Company other than the
assets of Palisades XVI and contained financialahdr covenants. The IDB Credit Facility’s comméim termination date was December 31,
2009. This IDB Credit Facility was repaid on Decemnhb4, 2009.
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Subordinated Debt — Related Party

On April 29, 2008, the Company obtained a subotdihéoan pursuant to a subordinated promissory fnote the Family Entity. The
Family Entity is a greater than 5% stockholderh&f €ompany beneficially owned and controlled byhArtStern, a Director of the Company,
Gary Stern, the Chairman, President and Chief BrecOfficer of the Company, and members of thainflies. The loan was in the aggregate
principal amount of approximately $8.2 million, bdnterest at a rate of 6.25% per annum, was payatdrest only each quarter until its
maturity date of January 9, 2010, subject to mémayment in full of the Comparg/senior loan facility with the Bank Group. The sudinatec
loan was incurred by the Company to resolve ceitaines related to the activities of one of thessmlicers utilized by Palisades Collection
LLC under the Receivables Financing Agreement. &¥ds from the subordinated loan were used inittallfurther collateralize the Compasy’
revolving loan facility with the Bank Group and wased to reduce the balance due on that faciligf &ay 31, 2008. In December 2009, the
subordinated debt-related party maturity date wasneled through December 31, 2010. In additioririterest rate was changed to 10% per
annum. Approximately $3.8 million of the loan o&tlpan was repaid in fiscal year 2010, with thea#nmg $4.4 million repaid during the first
quarter of fiscal year 2011, including the finaypeent of $2.4 million on December 20, 2010, redgdime balance to zero.

N oTE F — O THER L IABILITIES
Other liabilities as of September 30, 2011 and 28x&0as follows:

2011 2010
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 980,00( $1,227,001
Accrued interest payab 223,00( 321,00(
Due to third party service 1,293,001 —
Other 671,00( 557,00(

Total other liabilities $3,167,001 $2,105,001

N oTe G — | NCOME T AXES
The components of the provision for income taxenéfit) for the years ended September 30, 20110 264 2009 are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Current:
Federa $2,418,00! $ 2,215,001 $(47,062,00)
State — 175,00( (1,220,001
Federal true u 73,00( (5,588,000 —
2,491,00! (3,198,001) (48,282,00)
Deferred:
Federa 2,963,00! 3,882,00! 1,092,001
State 1,648,00 1,428,001 (9,597,00)
4,611,001 5,310,001 (8,505,00)
Provision for income taxe $7,102,001 $ 2,112,001 $(56,787,00)
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The difference between the statutory federal inctameate on the Company’s pre-tax income and th@g2ny’s effective income tax
rate is summarized for the years ended Septemh@03Q, 2010 and 2009 as follows:

2011 _2010 2009
Statutory federal income tax re 34.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income tax, net of federal ben 6.3 6.2 5.8
Deferred tax valuation allowan 1.8 15.¢ (2.2
Federal true uj — (15.9) —
Other (19 1.9 (0.2
Effective income tax rat 40.2% 40.2% 38.2%

The Company recognized a net deferred tax as$t4858,000 and $18,762,000 as of September 3Q, &0d 2010, respectively. The
components are as follows:

September 30, September 30,
2011 2010

Deferred revenue $ 127,00( $ 638,00(
Impairments 8,399,00! 12,228,00
State tax net operating loss carry forw 10,315,00 10,768,00
Compensation expen 1,172,001 496,00(
Other (93,000 (131,000
Deferred income taxe 19,920,00 23,999,00
Deferred tax valuation allowan (5,562,000 (5,237,000
Deferred income taxe $14,358,00 $18,762,00

The Company files consolidated Federal and stateniie tax returns. The Company’s subsidiaries aglesmember limited liability
companies and, therefore, do not file separateetaxns.

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method which requires the recoigmitof deferred tax assets and, if
applicable, deferred tax liabilities, for the exfgetfuture tax consequences of temporary differebetween the carrying amounts and the tax
bases of assets and, if applicable, liabilitiesdifidnally, the Company would adjust deferred tateeseflect estimated tax rate changes, if
applicable. The Company conducts periodic evalnatto determine whether it is more likely than thett some or all of its deferred tax assets
will not be realized. Among the factors consideirethis evaluation are estimates of future earnitiys future reversal of temporary differen
and the impact of tax planning strategies tha@bmpany can implement if warranted. The Compamgdsiired to provide a valuation
allowance for any portion of the Company’s defett@dassets that, more likely than not, will notrealized at September 30, 2011. Based on
this evaluation, the Company has a deferred taet assuation allowance of approximately $5.6 millias of September 30, 2011. Although
carryforward period for state income tax purposagpi to twenty years, given the economic conditisash economic environment could limit
growth over a reasonable time period to realizedtiferred tax asset. The Company determined treefigniod allowance for carryforward is
outside a reasonable period to forecast full ratibn of the deferred tax asset, therefore receghiize deferred tax asset valuation allowance.
The Company continually monitors forecast informatio ensure the valuation allowance is at
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the appropriate value. As required by FASB ASC Td6ome Taxes, the Company recognizes the finastaéément benefit of a tax position
only after determining that the relevant tax autiyorould more likely than not sustain the positimHowing an audit. For tax positions
meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the antagecognized in the financial statements is éingdst benefit that has a greater than

50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultiemaettlement with the relevant tax authority.

Upon the completion of the Company'’s federal taxnefor fiscal year 2009 and the application foe tax refund, the Company received
a federal tax refund in fiscal year 2010 of appmmadely $52.7 million based on the results of fisesr 2009 and tax law changes for net
operating loss carryback. Income tax benefits eelad states where the Company files tax returhsapply to future years. No loss carryba
are allowed. The true up for the fiscal year 20&@d¥al tax return was immaterial.

The Corporate federal income tax returns of the gamy for 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 are subjectam@ation by the IRS, generally
for three years after they are filed. The stateine tax returns and other state filings of the Camypare subject to examination by the state
taxing authorities for various periods, generaltyto four years after they are filed.

In April 2010, the Company received naotificatioorfr the IRS that the Company’s 2008 and 2009 fediecaime tax returns will be
audited. This audit is currently in progress. Iditidn, the Company’s federal income tax return@@#s been included in the ongoing audit.

The Company files consolidated Federal and statenie tax returns. The Company’s subsidiaries agiesmember limited liability
companies (LLC) and, therefore, do not file segatax returns.

N oTE H — C OMMITMENTS AND C ONTINGENCIES
Employment Agreements

On January 25, 2007, the Company entered into gologment agreement (the “Employment Agreement’hv@ary Stern, the
Company’s Chairman, President and Chief Executiffee€, which was to expire on December 31, 2009yfed, however, that Gary Stern
was required to provide ninety daysior written notice if he did not intend to seegkextension or renewal of the Employment AgreemEiné
Company and Mr. Stern are in the process of fimadizan extension of this agreement. In the intgyériod Mr. Stern continues his duties as
Chief Executive Officer at the discretion of theab of directors of the Company. In January 2008 ,Gompany entered into a similar two )
employment agreement with Cameron Williams, the gamy’s former Chief Operating Officer. The contraets not renewed and expired
December 31, 2009. The Company entered into a GtongsServices Agreement with Mr. Williams for seres through December 31, 2010.
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Leases

The Company leases its facilities in (i) Englewdlidfs, New Jersey, (ii) Houston, Texas and (iigrig Beach, New York. The leases are
operating leases, and the Company incurred retatgdexpense in the amounts of $305,000, $395,00(611,000 during the years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively fitlare minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year

Ending

September 30,

2012 $ 307,00(
2013 291,00(
2014 292,00(
2015 252,00(
2016 41,00(

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compaiyolved in numerous legal proceedings. The gamy regularly initiates collection
lawsuits, using its network of third party law fisiragainst consumers. Also, consumers occasiondlite litigation against the Company, in
which they allege that the Company has violategldeifal or state law in the process of collectirgrtaccount. The Company does not believe
that these matters are material to its businesdiaadcial condition. The Company is not involvedany material litigation in which it was a
defendant.

The Company received subpoenas from three juriediEtseeking information and/or documentation reigarits business practices. The
Company is fully cooperating with the issuing ageacThe Company has not made any provision wipeet to these matters in the financial
statements because the Company does not beligviadlyaare material to its business and finan@aldition.

N oTE | — C ONCENTRATIONS

At September 30, 2011, approximately 29% of the @amy’s portfolios were serviced by seven collectoganizations. The Company
has servicing agreements in place with these sesigrtion organizations as well as all of the Camygs other third party collection agencies
and attorneys that cover standard contingencydadsservicing of the accounts.

N oTe J — STocK O PTION P LANS

Equity Compensation Plan

On December 1, 2005, the board of directors adape€ompany’s Equity Compensation Plan (the “BgGiompensation Plan”), which
was approved by the stockholders of the Companylamh 1, 2006. The Equity Compensation Plan waptadito supplement the Compasy’
existing 2002 Stock Option Plan. In addition tomiting the grant of stock options as are permittader the 2002 Stock Option Plan, the
Equity Compensation Plan allows the Company fldxjbiith respect to equity awards by also provgliior grants of stock awards (i.e.
restricted or unrestricted), stock purchase rights stock appreciation rights.
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The general purpose of the Equity Compensation Blemprovide an incentive to the Company’s empks; directors and consultants,
including executive officers, employees and comsuft of any subsidiaries, by enabling them to shmatiee future growth of the business.

The Company has 1,000,000 shares of Common Stdbkréed for issuance under the Equity Compensa&ian and 495,569 were
available as of September 30, 2011. As of SepteB®e2011, approximately 87 of the Company’s empésywere eligible to participate in the
Equity Compensation Plan. Future grants under thétf Compensation Plan have not yet been detednine

2002 Stock Option Plan

On March 5, 2002, the board of directors adoptedAsta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan (th@02 Plan”), which plan was
approved by the Company’s stockholders on May 022The 2002 Plan was adopted in order to attrattretain qualified directors, officers
and employees of, and consultants to, the Comgare/following description does not purport to benpdete and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the full text of the 2002 Plan, whigincluded as an exhibit to the Company’s repfiléd with the SEC.

The 2002 Plan authorizes the granting of incergteek options (as defined in Section 422 of thee}@hd nomgualified stock options t
eligible employees of the Company, including officand directors of the Company (whether or notleyges) and consultants of the
Company.

The Company has 1,000,000 shares of Common Stdbkrazed for issuance under the 2002 Plan and B34)&re available as of
September 30, 2011. As of September 30, 2011, ajppately 87 of the Company’s employees were elgibl participate in the 2002 Plan.

In June 2011, the Compensation Committee of thedbaladirectors of the Company (the “Compensati@am@ittee”) granted 50,000
stock options to a consultant. The exercise prichese options was above the market price on déte af the grant. The weighted average
assumptions used in the option pricing model werfokows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.09%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 105.%%
Dividend yield 0.95%

In March 2011, the Compensation Committee gran@@QD stock options to an employee. The exercise pf these options was at the
market price on the date of the grant. The weightestage assumptions used in the option pricingemedre as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.1%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 106.2%
Dividend yield 0.94%

In December 2010, the Compensation Committee giled2d,800 stock options, of which 30,000 optionsenssued to each non-
employee independent director for a total of 150,8®ck options. 60,000 stock options were awatdede Chief Executive Officer and
30,000 stock options were awarded to the Chiefriizh Officer and the Senior Vice President. Thaa@ing 54,800 stock options were
granted to full time employees of the
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Company, who had been employed at the Companyt feast six months prior to the date of grant. §hants to employees excluded officers
of the Company. The exercise price of these opticars at the market price on the date of the gildmd.exercise price of all stock options was
at the market price on the date of the grant. Teighted average assumptions used in the optiomgnnodel were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.17%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 106.%%
Dividend yield 0.98%

Additionally, in December 2010, the Compensatiom@uttee issued 32,765 shares of restricted stothet@hief Executive Officer.

In December 2009, the Compensation Committee giled2B6)00 stock options to each director of the Camymther than the Chief
Executive Officer, for a total of 150,000 optioasd 8,900 stock options to full time employeeshef Company who had been employed at the
Company for at least six months prior to the ddtgrant. The grants to employees excluded officéthie Company. The exercise price of
these options was at the market price on the ddteegrant. The weighted average assumptions instheé option pricing model were as
follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.17%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 110.2%
Dividend yield 1.12%

1995 Stock Option Plan

The 1995 Stock Option Plan expired on Septembe20d5. The plan was adopted in order to attractratadn qualified directors,
officers and employees of, and consultants to tia@any. The following description does not purggorbe complete and is qualified in its
entirety by reference to the full text of the 19%ck Option Plan, which is included as an exhibihe Company’s reports filed with the SEC.

The 1995 Stock Option Plan authorized the grantingcentive stock options (as defined in Secti@g 4f the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended [the “Code”]) and non-qualifiedlsbptions to eligible employees of the Compangluding officers and directors of the
Company (whether or not employees) and consultarttee Company.

The Company authorized 1,840,000 shares of Comrtmuk $or issuance under the 1995 Stock Option PAdirbut 96,002 shares were
utilized. As of September 14, 2005, no more optiomsd be issued under this plan.
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The following table summarizes stock option tratisas under the plans:
Year Ended September 30,

2011 2010 2009
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding options at the beginning of y 922,03¢  $12.7( 1,157,90! $10.7¢ 1,037,433t $ 11.6¢
Options grante: 384,80( 7.5¢ 158,90( 8.07 122,00( 2.9t
Options cancelle: (6,300 6.07 (66,700 17.4¢ (2,000 28.7¢
Options exercise (6,26%) 3.3t (328,06¢) 2.6t (539 2.9t
Outstanding options at the end of y 1,294,27. $11.41 922,03¢ $12.7( 1,157,900 $10.7¢
Exercisable options at the end of y 992,607 $12.41 792,377 $13.6f 1,081,991 $11.31

The Company recognized $1,906,000 of compensatiperse related to stock options in the fiscal yemted September 30, 2011. As of

September 30, 2011, there was $1,176,000 of unnéed) compensation cost related to unvested stptérs. The Company recognized
$807,000 and $164,000 of stock based compensatjmmse related to stock option grants in fiscat @840 and 2009, respectively.

The intrinsic value of the options exercised dufisgal year 2010 was approximately $30,000. Tlernisic value of options exercised

during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010B&esmillion and there was no intrinsic value fioe options exercised in 2009. There was

no intrinsic value of the outstanding and exerdisaptions as of September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009.
The following table summarizes information abowt fflans’ outstanding options as of September 30120

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Price Qutstanding Life (In Years) Price Exercisable Price
$ 2.8751-% 5.7500 189,60( 3.9 $ 3.9t 189,60( $ 3.9t
$ 5.7501- $ 8.625(C 501,40( 8.7 7.71 233,06¢ 7.72
$ 8.6251- $14.375(C 50,00( 9.7 11.5(C 16,66 11.5(C
$14.3751- $17.250C 198,61: 2.1 14.8¢ 198,61 14.8¢
$17.2501- $20.125C 339,66( 3.1 18.2: 339,66( 18.2:
$25.8751- $28.750( 15,00( 5.2 28.7¢ 15,00( 28.7¢
1,294,27. 5.5 $11.41 992,60° $12.4]
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The following table summarizes information aboutrieted stock transactions:

Weighted Weighted

Year Ended Average Year Ended Average

September 30,201 Grant Date  September 30,201  Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unvested at the beginning of period 17,66¢ $ 19.7% 35,33¢ $ 19.7¢
Awards grantel 32,76¢ 7.6% — 0.0C
Vested (28,597 15.11 (17,669 19.7¢
Forfeited 0.0C — 0.0C
Unvested at the end of peri 21,847 $ 7.6% 17,66¢ $ 19.7:

The Company recognized $149,000, $382,000 and 882@f compensation expense during the fiscal yerdsed September 30, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively, for restricted stédekof September 30, 2011, there was $101,000 &foagnized compensation cost related to
unvested restricted stock.

The Company recognized a total of $2,055,000, #1008 and $984,000 in compensation expense fdistted years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivalyhéostock options and restricted stock grantsoffSeptember 30, 2011, there was a total
of $1,277,000 of unrecognized compensation coataelto unvested stock options and restricted gomhts. The method used to calculate
stock based compensation is the straight line gtedrmethod.

N oTE K — S TOCKHOLDERS ' E QuUITY

During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Coyneclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating 4,000, which includes $0.02
per share, per quarter, of which $293,000 was adcas of September 30, 2011 and paid Novemberld, 20

During the year ended September 30, 2010, the Coyneclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating@i1000, which includes $0.02
per share, per quarter, of which $292,000 was adcas of September 30, 2010 and paid NovemberlD, 20

The Company expects to pay a regular cash dividefidure quarters, but the amount has not yet loetermined. This will be at the
discretion of the board of directors and will degpeipon the Company’s financial condition, operatiegults, capital requirements and any
other factors the board of directors deems relevargddition, agreements with the Company’s leadeay, from time to time, restrict the
ability to pay dividends. As of September 30, 2ah&re were no such restrictions.

On June 20, 2011, the Company'’s board of direcotisorized a share repurchase program for up td$g0iion of the Company’s
common stock. The program calls for repurchasé®tmade in the open market or in privately negedidgtansactions from time to time in
compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regaitest, including Rule 10b-18 under the SecuritiesHaxnge Act of 1934, as amended, subject
to cash requirements for other purposes, and ogfwrant factors, such as trading price, tradingme and general market and business
conditions. There is no guarantee as to the exanber of shares that will be purchased, and thegaommmay discontinue repurchases at any
time that the board of directors determines thditemhal repurchases are not warranted. The Compgpmyrchased an aggregate of
approximately $70,000 of its common stock, at cdsting August 2011.
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The Company maintains a 401(k) Retirement Planrdogell of its eligible employees. Matching cobtitions made by the Company to
the plan are made at the discretion of the boadirettors each plan year. Contributions for thaergeended September 30, 2011, 2010 and
2009 were $106,000, $95,000 and $74,000, respéctive

N oTE M — F AIR V ALUE M EASUREMENTS AND D ISCLOSURES
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, (“ASC 8258quires disclosure of fair value information abfinéncial instruments, whether or
not recognized on the balance sheet, for whichptracticable to estimate that value. Because #rera limited number of market participants
for certain of the Company’s assets and liabiljtfag value estimates are based upon judgmengsdayy credit risk, investor expectation of
economic conditions, normal cost of administrathowl other risk characteristics, including interast¢ and prepayment risk. These estimates
are subjective in nature and involve uncertairgied matters of judgment, which significantly afféwt estimates.

The estimated fair value of the Company'’s finaniciatruments is summarized as follows:

September 30, 201 September 30, 201
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assetl

Cash and cash equivale! $ 84,347,00 $ 84,347,00 $ 75,301,00 $ 75,30100
Available-for-sale investment 13,515,00 13,515,00! — —
Other investment 9,060,00! 9,060,00! 8,934,00! 8,934,00!
Consumer receivables acquired for liquidat 115,195,00 135,234,00 147,031,00 179,730,00

Financial liabilities
Non recourse debt and subordinated debt (related
party) 71,604,00 71,604,00 94,869,00 94,869,00

Disclosure of the estimated fair values of finahiriatruments often requires the use of estimatkes. Company uses the following
methods and assumptions to estimate the fair \&lfinancial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents — The carrying amoumbajoppates fair value.

Available-for-sale investments — The available-$ate securities consist of mutual funds that aleedhbased on quoted prices in active
markets.

Other investments — The carrying amount approximéde value.

Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation — Tenpany computed the fair value of the consumegivables acquired for
liquidation using its proprietary forecasting madehe Company’s forecasting model utilizes a disted cash flow analysis. The Company’s
cash flows are an estimate of collections for camsureceivables based on variables fully describédbte C: Consumer Receivables Acqu
for Liquidation. These cash flows are discounteddtermine the fair value.

Debt and subordinated debt (related party) — Theytey value of debt and subordinated debt (relatdy) approximates fair value as
the majority of these loan balances are varialikeaad short-term in nature.
Fair Value Measurements
The Company recorded its available-for-sale investisiat estimated fair value on a recurring bdsis.accompanying consolidated
financial statements include estimated fair vahferimation regarding its
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available-for sale investments as of Septembe2@01, as required by FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measents and Disclosures (“ASC
820"). There were no available-for-sale investmeast®f September 30, 2010. ASC 820 defines fairevak the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (ait price) in an orderly transaction between magaaticipants on the measurement date. ASC
also establishes a fair value hierarchy which neguan entity to maximize the use of observablatsipnd minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. A financial ingtent’s level within the fair value hierarchy isskd on the lowest level of input significant
to the fair value measurement.

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active ratgfor identical assets or liabilities that then@pany has the ability to assess at the
measurement date.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1gmjsuch as quoted prices for similar assets loitifies in active markets; quoted
prices in markets that are not active for identaradimilar assets or liabilities; or other inpthat are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the &ritrt of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supportelitty or no market activity and significant toetffiair value of the liabilities that are
developed using the reporting entities’ estimatebassumptions, which reflect those that markeigyants would use.

The Company’s available —f@ale investments are classified as Level 1 findmtséruments based on the classifications desdritmve
The Company did not have any transfers into (out.e¥el 1 investments during the fiscal year engdtS&mber 30, 2011. The Company had no
Level 2 or 3 investments during the fiscal yearesh8eptember 30, 2011.

N oTE N — RELATED P ARTY T RANSACTIONS

On April 29, 2008, the Company obtained a subotdiohéoan pursuant to a subordinated promissory fnote the Family Entity. The
loan is in the aggregate principal amount of apjnately $8.2 million, bears interest at a rate @586 per annum, is payable interest only ¢
quarter until its maturity date of January 9, 20duihject to prior repayment in full of the Compangénior loan facility with the Bank Group.
In December 2009 the promissory note’s maturitye dets extended to December 31, 2010, and the sttexte was changed to 10% per
annum.

On January 27, 2010, the Company re-paid approri;n&s60,740 of the subordinated loan. The Comphaliyered $787,500 to the
Family Entity, and will deliver $73,240 to BMO tohkl as collateral, as approximately 8.5% of thenltmthe Family Entity secures the
obligations due to BMO by Palisades Acquisition XVLC, and the Company’s wholly owned subsidiarieTFamily Entity then delivered its
portion of the loan payment to Gary Stern, who usé&alexercise the stock options awarded to hithényear 2000 (300,000 stock options
under the 1995 Stock Option Plan of Asta Funding, With an exercise price of $2.625 per share)F@pruary 17, 2010, the Company re-paid
$1,500,000 of principal of the subordinated loame Tompany delivered $1,372,365 to the Family ngihd delivered $127,635 to BMO to
hold as collateral.

The Company paid GMS Family Investors, a relatatypa 2% collateral fee of $160,000, related ® &lssets pledged by GMS Family
Investors for the $6.0 million Bank Leumi Credit iegment.

On March 26, 2010, the Company re-paid $1,500,0@0incipal of the subordinated loan. The Compaeijvered $1,372,365 to the
Family Entity, and the remaining $127,635 to BMChtild as collateral.

On November 16, 2010, the Company repaid $1,9700@8incipal on the Subordinated Loan with the Hgarantity. The remaining
balance due to the Family Entity under the Subateith Loan after this payment is approximately $2,d00. That balance was repaid on
December 20, 2010.
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On December 12, 2011, the Company and A. L. Pic&aBp., Inc. (“Piccolo”), which is owned by Louiddeolo, a director of the
Company, entered into a Consulting Agreement, @unisto which Piccolo will provide consulting sem&cwhich include, but are not limited
analysis of proposed debt and equity transactidunes diligence and financial analysis and managemmgulting services (“Services”). The
Consulting Agreement shall be for a period of tveans and Piccolo will receive compensation of $a80 per annum payable monthly, a
bonus of $25,000 per new transaction closed by tirapany with Piccolo’s assistance (excluding angpital pending transactions), and
30,000 options per year, with such options vestingiree equal annual installments on the firstpse and third anniversaries of the grant ¢

N oTE O — SUMMARIZED Q UARTERLY D ATA ( UNAUDITED )

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2011
Total revenue $10,838,000 $11,234,00 $11,297,00 $ 9,798,000 $43,167,00
Income before income tax 4,478,001 4,795,001 5,615,00! 2,735,00! 17,623,00
Net income 2,666,00! 2,855,001 3,344,00! 1,656,001 10,521,00
Basic net income per she $ 0.1¢ % 02 $ 0.2: $ 011 $ 0.72
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 02: $ 011 $ 0.71
2010
Total revenue $11,053,000 $11,200,00 $12,097,00 $11,499,000 $45,849,00
Income (loss) before income tax 4,165,00! 4,839,00! 5,242,00! (9,005,001 5,241,00!
Net income (loss 2,475,001 2,875,001 3,121,00! (5,342,000 3,129,00!
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 017 $ 02 % 021 $ (0.37) % 0.22
Diluted net income (loss) per sh $ 017 $ 02 $ 021 $ 037) % 0.2z

*  Due to rounding the sum of quarterly totals foméags per share may not add to the yearly t
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On December 12, 2011, The Company and A. L. Pic&dlp., Inc., which is owned by Louis Piccolo, a@&itor of the Company,
entered into a Consulting Agreement. See Note Nelated Party Transactions for more information.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2012, then@pany has invested $3.8 million in the litigatfonding business with a focus on
investing in personal injury claims.
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiary Companies

Jurisdiction Percentage
Under

Name Which Organized Owned
Asta Funding, Inc. Delaware

Asta Funding Acquisition |, LL( Delaware 10C%
Asta Funding Acquisition Il, LLC Delaware 10C%
Asta Commercial, LLC Delaware 10C%
Asta Funding.com, LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition I, LL¢ Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition II, LL( Delaware 100%
Palisades Acquisition IV, LL( Delaware 100%
Computer Finance, LL! Delaware 10C%
Palisades Collection, LL Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition VIII, LLC Delaware 100%
Option Card, LLC Colorado 10C%
Palisades Acquisition IX, LL( Delaware 100%
VATIV Recovery Solutions LLC Texas 100%
Palisades Acquisition X, LL( Delaware 10C%
Cliffs Portfolio Acquisition I, LLC Delaware 100%
Sylvan Acquisition |. LLC Delaware 100%
Palisades Acquisition XI LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XII LLC Delaware 100%
Palisades Acquisition XIII LLC Delaware 100C%
Palisades Acquisition XIV LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XV LL( Delaware 100%
Palisades Acquisition XVI LL( Delaware 100%
Palisades Acquisition XVII LLC Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XVIII LLC Delaware 10C%
Brook Mays Joint Ventur Massachuset 25%
Palisades XIll Do Brasil Gesto Financeira L Brazil 99.%
LBLINY, LLC Delaware 10C%
ELR Holdings LLC Delaware 100%
Asta GFN LLC Delaware 10C%

Prestiga Funding, LL( Delaware 10C%



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated December 14, &@itiYespect to the consolidated financial stateimand internal control over
financial reporting included in the Annual RepoiriAsta Funding, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year eth@=ptember 30, 2011. We hereby
consent to the incorporation by reference of sambrts in the Registration Statements of Asta Fumdinc. on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-
142201, effective April 18, 2007, File No. 333-999&ffective September 20, 2002, and File No. 33338, effective June 8, 2000); and Form
S-3 (File No. 333-166212, effective May 12, 2010).

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
December 14, 201




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Gary Stern, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesjur caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigdorting, or caused such internal control oveariicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémta report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasti’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisgmifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s| Gary Stern

Gary Sterr

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeutiv
Officer

(Principal Executive Officer

December 14, 2011

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 302 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&ugnmission or its staff per request.




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Robert J. Michel, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesjur caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigdorting, or caused such internal control oveariicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémta report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasti’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisgmifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Robert J. Michel
Robert J. Miche

Chief Financial Office!
(Principal Financial Officer

December 14, 2011

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 302 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&ammission or its staff per request.




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furdiinc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded September 30, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstbe (Report”), I, Gary Stern, Chief Executive O#ficof the Company, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sedfiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to mgvidedge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirengnf Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ad984; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the consaifihancial condition of the
company as of the dates presented and the consalidesult of operations of the Company for thequsr presented.

/sl Gary Ster

Gary Sterr

President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: December 14, 2011

This certification has been furnished solely pumsia Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is not being filed as part of the
10-K as a separate disclosure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&ammission or its staff per request.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furdiinc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded September 30, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstbe (Report”), I, Robert J. Michel, Chief Financfafficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted purtu&ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@02t to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirermrenf Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ad934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the cons@tifihancial condition of the
Company as of the dates presented and the consalidzsult of operations of the Company for thegaks presented.

/s/ Robert J. Michel
Robert J. Miche

Chief Financial Office!
(Principal Financial Officer

Dated: December 14, 2011

This certification has been furnished solely purgua Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280& is not being filed as part of the
10-K as a separate disclosure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyéll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&uammission or its staff per reque




